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Procedure for the 2021 Annual
Shareholders' Meeting

l. Call Meeting to Order
II. Chairman's Address
1. Report Items

V. Ratification Items

V.  Discussion Items

VI. Extraordinary Motions

VIIl. Meeting Adjourned



Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited
2021 Annual Shareholders' Meeting

Time: 9:00 a.m., June 18, 2021

Location: No.6, Lane 28, Sanho Road, Sanshi Village, Dayuan District, Taoyuan
City, Taiwan, R.O.C. (Conference room on the 1st floor)

V.

VI.

VII.

Call the Meeting to Order (Declare the total number of shares of attendance)
Chairman's Address

Report Items

(1) 2020 Business Report

(2) 2020 Audit Committee's Review Report

(3) Distribution of Employees' Profit Sharing Bonus and Directors'
Remuneration for 2020

(4) Distribution of Cash Dividends for 2020
(5) Issuance and Execution of Overseas Unsecured Convertible Bonds

(6) Proposals Submitted by Shareholders with Shareholding of More Than
1%

Ratification Items

(1) Ratification of 2020 Business Report and Consolidated Financial
Statements

(2) Ratification of 2020 Earnings Distribution

Discussion Items

(1) Amendments to the "Rules and Procedures of Shareholders' Meeting"
Extraordinary Motions

Meeting Adjourned



Report 1:

Explanatory Notes:

Report 2:

Explanatory Notes:

Report 3:

Explanatory Notes:

Report 4:

Explanatory Notes:

Report Items

2020 Business Reports
To report the business of 2020, please refer to
Attachment 1 of the Meeting Handbook

2020 Audit Committee's Review Report
For the 2020 Audit Committee's Review Report, please
refer to Attachment 2 of the Meeting Handbook

Distribution of Employees' Profit Sharing Bonus and

Directors' Remuneration for 2020

The Company's profit (net profit before tax and the

remuneration to employees and directors) was NT$ for

2020, among which:

1. Remuneration of employees: Surplus profits was
set aside by 0.7% and the amount of
NT$67,167,630 was distributed in cash to
employees including the subordinate company
employees who meet certain criteria.

2. Directors' remuneration: according to the Articles
of Association, directors' remuneration shall not
exceed 0.5% of profits, and remuneration for each
director shall not exceed NT$2,500,000. The total
amount of NT$17,500,000 (0.2% of the profit) for
this year is set aside.

3. The proposal has been discussed and approved by
the Compensation Committee and the Board of
Directors on March 30, 2021.

Distribution of Cash Dividends for 2020

1. According to Article 13.4 of the Articles of
Association, the Board of Directors is authorized to
distribute cash dividends and report to shareholders
at the shareholders' meeting.

2. Based on 947,049,161 outstanding shares issued as
of December 31, 2020, the cash dividend per share
proposed for distribution is NT$4.5 (allocated to
NT$ 1). The Company's 2020 earnings distribution
is NT$4,261,721,224.



Report 5:

Explanatory Notes:

3. The Chairman 1s authorized to determine ex-
dividend date, distribution date, and other relevant
matters. If changes to shareholders' dividends arise
due to changes in the number of outstanding shares,
the Chairman is also authorized to handle relevant
matters.

Issuance and Execution of Overseas Unsecured
Convertible Bonds

The Company's third foreign non-guaranteed
convertible corporate bonds were issued on June 30,
2020.

The implementation status is as follows:

Type of corporate bond

Third foreign non-guaranteed convertible corporate bond

Date of issue

June 30, 2020

Denomination

The denomination of each bond is USD200,000 or its integer
multiples.

Issuance and trading

Singapore Exchange Limited

location
Issued Price Issued at 100% of the denomination
Total value USD400,000,000
Coupon rate 0%

Term

5 years (Maturity date: June 30, 20251)

Trustee

Citigroup International Limited

Underwriting agency

Lead domestic underwriter: Grand Fortune Securities Co., Ltd.

Lead foreign underwriter:
Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited and Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Certifying lawyer

Lee and Li Attorneys at Law

Certifying CPA

CPA Yung-Chien Hsu and CPA Min-Chuan Feng of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

Repayment method

Conversion into ordinary shares according to Article 13 of the
Conversion Method or exercise the call option according to Article
11 of the Conversion Method and exercise the early redemption
option according to Article 12 of the Conversion Method

Outstanding principal

USD400,000,000

Terms for redemption or
early settlement

(1) After 3 years of issuance, if the closing price for 20 consecutive
trading days of the issuing company's ordinary stock on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange (for ex-rights or ex-dividends, the
closing price will be used between the ex-rights or ex-dividend
trading date to the ex-rights or ex-dividend base date, and the
price before ex-rights or ex-dividends should be calculated
first) is 125% of the early redemption price multiplied by the
current conversion price then divided by the Company's bond
value, the issuing company may redeem all or part of the
company's bonds at the early redemption price (defined in




Article 12(4) of the Regulations).

(2) When more than 90% of the Company's bonds have been
redeemed, repurchased and retired, or converted by the
bondholders, the issuing company may redeem the bonds in
full at the early redemption price.

(3) When the tax laws of the Republic of China or the British
Cayman Islands are changed, causing the tax burden,
additional interest expenses, or cost of the issuing company to
increase due to the Company's bonds after the issuance date,
the issuing company may redeem the bonds in full at the early
redemption price.

(4) When an event related to the Company's bonds occurs, the
early redemption price is calculated by the issuing company
based on the face value of the Company's bonds plus an
annual interest rate of 0% from the date of issuance to the day
when the event related to the Company's bonds occurred.

Restrictive Terms

The corporate bonds may not be directly offered, sold, or
delivered in the Republic of China.

Converted

date of

Other | blication

amount as of the

No

rights Issuance and

Conversion
Method

Please refer to Appendix 4 of the Handbook.

Effects of the issuance and
conversion method and
issuance conditions on
possible dilution of shares
and equity of current
shareholders

If all overseas unsecured convertible bonds issued this time are
converted to ordinary shares at the price at issuance, the
maximum dilution ratio for the original shareholders’ equity will
be approximately 8.24%

Report 6:

Explanatory Notes:

Proposals Submitted by Shareholders with
Shareholding of More Than 1%

According to Article 22.6 of the Articles of Association,
shareholders' proposals shall be proposed to the
shareholders' meeting during the period from April 9,
2021 to April 19, 2021. No shareholder's proposal is
raised during the said period.



Ratification Items

Proposal 1 Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: Ratification of 2020 Business Report and
Consolidated Financial Statements
Explanatory Notes: 1. The Company's consolidated financial statements
for 2020 were audited by independent auditors,
CPA Yung-Chien, Hsu, and CPA Min-Chuan, Feng
of the CPA firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan.
2. For the 2020 business report, independent auditors'
report and consolidated financial statements, please
refer to Attachment 1 and Attachment 3 of the
Meeting Handbook.
3. Please proceed to acknowledge.

Resolution:
Proposal 2 Proposed by the Board of Directors
Subject: Ratification of 2020 Earnings Distribution

Explanatory Notes: 1. The net profit after tax of the Company's parent
company for 2020 was NT$8,094,547,076 and the
retained earnings available to distribute for the year
was NT$27,503,252,128.

2. Based on the number of shares outstanding at the
end of the reporting period of 947,049,161 shares
on December 31, 2020, the distribution of cash
dividends per share is NT$4.5 (distributed to NT$ 1,
and below). The Company's 2020 earning
distribution is NT$4,261,721,224. For 2020
Earnings Distribution Table, please refer to
Attachment 4 on page 28 of the Handbook.

3.  After the proposal is ratified in the Shareholders'
Meeting, the Chairman is authorized to determine
ex-dividend date, distribution date, and other
relevant matters. If changes to shareholders'
dividends arise due to changes in the number of
outstanding shares, the Chairman is also authorized
to handle relevant matters.

4. Please proceed to acknowledge.

Resolution:



Discussion Items

Proposal 1 Proposed by the Board of Directors

Subject: Amendments to the '‘Rules and Procedures of
Shareholders' Meeting"

Explanatory Notes: 1. The Company's "Rules and Procedures of
Shareholders' Meeting” have been partially
amended in accordance with the letter Tai Zhen Zhi
Li No. 11000014461 issued by Taiwan Stock
Exchange on January 28, 2021. Please refer to
Attachment 5 on page 29 of the Handbook.

2. The Regulations were approved by the Board of
Directors on March 30, 2021.
3. Please proceed to discuss.

Resolution:



Extraordinary Motions

Meeting Adjourned




Attachment 1

Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited
Business Report

Due to the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effect on the global economy is still
severe. Measures such as work stoppages and quarantines have presented new challenges to the
overall global supply chain. Facing the impact of the pandemic on the global supply chain, the
Company is ensuring the steady supply of product through active communication between its
customers and suppliers and by adjusting product structures. Therefore, the Company is showing
overall continued growth and its annual revenue has reached NT$131,278,000 thousand, setting a
new record for the Company. This further demonstrates the Company's flexibility when faced with
changing trends and tenacity to maintain steady growth. Furthermore, despite the complicated
situation in the past year, the Company continues to promote investments in and construction of
various projects, improve its global reach, and optimize product structures. The Company is also
increasing its research and development capabilities for new products through cooperation with
academia and its own abilities, in order to strengthen the Company's leading position and
competitiveness.

The Company's 2020 business overview and 2021 future outlook are as follows:
I. 2020 Business Overview
()  Financial Results

The Company's consolidated revenue for 2020 was NT$131,278,000 thousand,
representing an increase of 9.34% compared to the previous year. Net income was
NT$11,508,000 thousand (net income attributable to the parent company was
NT$8,094,000 thousand), representing an increase of -7.20% compared to the previous
year. The consolidated earnings per share (EPS) was NT$12.66 (consolidated EPS
attributable to the parent company was NT$8.90).

(I1)  With a presence on both sides of the strait, the Company looks to the world

In 2020, the Company continued to promote the expansion of existing plants and
investment plans for new plant construction. Currently, for the second plant in Shenzhen,
the first phase of construction is in partial production and the second phase is also under
accelerated construction. The Huai'an FPC expansion project, Qinhuangdao high-end
HDI expansion project, and the Huai'an first park upgrade and expansion project
continue to be implemented according to plan. Regarding ICS, the Company's subsidiary,
Leading Interconnect Semiconductor Technology, has acquired the land for its Shenzhen
plant and will begin construction this year. Furthermore, the flexible print circuit
production line that the Company has planned to establish in the Southern Taiwan
Science Park in Kaohsiung is currently undergoing construction planning. At the same
time, production will begin in the India site in the first half of 2021. Further investment
strategies will be planned according to market conditions in order to further improve the
Company's global layout.

The Company has also acquired BoardTek Electronics Corp. through capital increase
and shares exchange, making BoardTek an 100% subsidiary of Zhen Ding. In the future,
BoardTek will focus on research, development, and production in telecommunications,
high speed computing, and automotive related fields. This will strengthen Zhen Ding's
technical competitiveness in the automotive and high-frequency applications. The



(1)

(V)

Company will fully utilize the advantage of complementary research and development
abilities of both parties and deepen its partnerships with international automobile,
communications, and Al cloud companies.

Continued investments in research and development to promote industry-academia
collaboration

The Company's research and development continues to focus on "new materials, new
products, new production processes, new equipment, and new technologies", with the
aim of achieving "compact size, faster speeds, and refined design”. The Company is
committed to the advanced development of 5G to 6G, Al, Internet of Things, and
Internet of Vehicles applications to ensure the Company's technological advantage in the
industry. In 2020, the Company invested NT$5,545,000 thousand in research and
development, representing 4.22% of business revenue. The Company obtained 153
patents during the year and as of December 31, 2020, the Company now holds 1,057
patents, of which 93% are utility patents.

The Company continues to work with several well-known domestic and foreign
universities. It has established the joint research center with Tsinghua University in 2020
to jointly conduct research and development. The work is focused on the smart
production, advanced manufacturing, and advanced materials for printed circuits,
providing new energy for growth for the Company.

In order to strengthen the research and development of big data images and 5G related
technologies, the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area Big Data Images
and Communication Applications Joint Laboratory, established by the Company in
partnership with Shenzhen Academy of Information and Communication Technology,
Shenzhen University, City University of Hong Kong, Konka Group, and Xiaomi, has
been approved by the Department of Science and Technology of Guangdong Province.
Additionally, the Company has signed an academia-industry partnership agreement with
Hebei University of Technology and submitted the application the application for "5G
communications flexible transmission cable structure development and application”.
The new generation information technology has been approved by the Qinhuangdao
Science and Technology Bureau.

In terms of material applications, the Company signed a cooperation agreement to
jointly build the Electronic Materials Joint Innovation Center with Shenzhen Institute of
Advanced Electronic Materials, promoting the Company's research and application of
electronic materials and substrate materials. The center will accelerate the process of
commercializing the research results and elevate the standards of materials research and
new material development.

Deploying cutting-edge technologies, expanding product applications

The Company has long-term partnerships with first-class international brands. It
participates in the early product development process of these brands and creates
cutting-edge technologies together, thereby understanding the trends and direction of
product technology development. As the technological revolution brought by 5G nears,
the Company has prepared the research and development of 5G related technologies in
advance. It now possesses the technological capability to manufacture 5G antennas and
other key products, and has deployed production capabilities in various sites. Moreover,
the Company is one of the few manufacturers in the industry which holds the technology
for mini-LED backlight ultra-thin circuit boards, and is currently deploying production
capabilities in Huai'an Second Park. The first phase of the project has begun production
in the end of 2020 and the second phase is expected to being production in the second
half of 2021. With the continuous research and development of and investment in new
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products, the Company's industrial competitiveness will be further enhanced.

In the field of new product applications, after many years of deployment, the Company
has made good progress in terms of automotive circuit boards. Among which, the
production capacity for electric vehicle automatic driving assistance system (ADAS)
related products has been steadily increased. In the face of rapid developments in new
energy sources and smart vehicles, the Company will continue to increase its
investments and developments in automotive circuit boards in the future, which will
further expand the Company's product line.

(V) Promoting Industry 4.0 and realizing smart production

As the long-term strategy for the Company's development, the Company is gradually
promoting industry 4.0 for PCB manufacturing. In the construction of new plants,
besides the Qinhuangdao high-end HDI project, a MES production management system
has been established for the new production line in Huai'an Second Park. The
combination of the equipment information connectivity and automated handling and
warehouse system forms a comprehensive automated operation system. A new smart
module production line has been added to the Shenzhen Second Park. Regarding the
transformation of old plants, smart upgrades continue to be implemented in the
Shenzhen Park. Information acquisition systems and management systems are added to
the production equipment to realize the management goal of unified production
parameters.

In response to the production requirements of product refinement, the Company has
adopted the methods of the semiconductor industry. For all equipment parameters in the
production process, the inspection data and manufacturing process will all be digitized
and imported into the Engineering Data Analysis (EDA) software, in order to fully
control the stability of production. The experience of skilled employees will also be
recorded digitally to form standard operating procedures, thereby reducing the risk of
employee changes and improving the implementation of standardized production.

Future prospects

After the economic downturn caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of trade
between China and the United States, the global technology industry will rethink its
deployment. Corporations must strengthen and hasten their expansion when the global
economy recovers to be able to adapt to various changes. Facing new development
opportunities, the Company will continue to adhere to the development strategy of
"establishing roots in China, deploying on both sides of the strait, looking towards the global
market, and developing high-end products”. In addition to continued investments in China,
Taiwan, and India, development will be pointed towards high-end product technology
upgrades. The Company will actively create new products, find new customers, and expand
production capacity, in order to realize global deployment. This will become the foundation for
the Company's mid- to long-term sustainable development.

The post-pandemic period has accelerated the development of remote working, video
conferencing, online retail, and cloud computing. Meanwhile, with the popularization and
strengthening of 5G technology applications, the application of 5G related electronic products
and 10T related products will also become more extensive. These various factors will bring
opportunities for rapid development to the printed circuit board industry. In response to
product development trends and directions, the Company will continue to expand and optimize
the production capacity of each plant, uphold the ideas of "One ZDT" (one-stop shopping
service), continue to develop advanced production process technology and high-performance
and cost-effective products, and actively invest in environmental protection and green
production. The Company will continue to lead industry developments, strengthen its core
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competitiveness, and promote its core values of "integrity, responsibility, innovation,
excellence, and benefiting all”. Through talent recruitment, the Company will elevate its
overall management standard and meet international standards for research and development,
production, sales, and operational management. Furthermore, environmental protection and
work safety management will be continuously improved to uphold the principles of fair
treatment towards employees, the environment, and suppliers. As the Company continues to
grow with its strategic partners and innovate and develop, it will move towards the mission of
"developing technology, benefiting humanity, protecting the environment, and making the
world a better place".

Chairman: General Manager: Accounting Manager:
Chang-Fang Shen Ting-Chuan Lee Jin-Ten Chang
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Attachment 2

Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited
Audit Committee's Audit Report

The Board of Directors has prepared and submitted the 2020 business report,
consolidated financial statements, and earnings distribution proposal, of which the
consolidated financial statements have been audited by the CPAs Yung-Chien Hsu
and Min-Chuan Feng of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan and an Audit Report is
submitted. The Audit Committee has reviewed the business report, consolidated
financial statements, and the earnings distribution proposal and did not find any
incompliance. According to the regulations in the Articles of Association, it is hereby

submitted for your examination.
To:

2021 Shareholders' Annual General Meeting

Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited

Audit Committee Convener: Chih-Chen Chou

March 30, 2021
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Attachment 3

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Zhen Ding Technology Holding
Limited and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and their
consolidated financial performance and their consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the ‘Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers’
and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC
Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory

Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December
31,2020 in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements
by Certified Public Accountants, and generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China;
and in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by
Certified Public Accountants, Enforcement Letter No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Auditing-
1090360805 issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission on February 25, 2020 and generally
accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China for our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants in the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our
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other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming
our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2020 were as follows:

Cutoff of hub warehouse sales revenue

Description

Refer to Note 4(28) for accounting policies on revenue recognition.

The Group recognises revenue when the goods are directly shipped from factories and when customers
accept the goods (the transfer of control) if picked up from hub warehouses. For pick-ups from hub
warehouses, the Group recognises sales revenue based on movements of inventory records contained in
the statements or other information provided by the warehouse custodians. The hub warehouses are
located around the world with numerous warehouse custodians, the frequency and contents of statements
provided by custodians are different, and the process of revenue recognition may involve manual
procedures. These factors may potentially result in inaccurate timing of sales revenue recognition.

As there are numerous daily sales transactions from hub warehouses and the transaction amounts prior
to and after the balance sheet date are significant to the financial statements, we consider the cutoff of
hub warehouse sales revenue a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter:

A. Assessed and tested internal controls over regular record verification between the Group and
customers.

B. Assessed and checked the appropriateness of cutoff of sales revenue prior to or after the balance sheet
date, and verified the statements provided by the hub warehouse custodians.

C. Performed confirmation of the storage quantities or observed physical counts in warehouse, compared
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against inventory records, and determined whether differences, if any, are properly adjusted.

Estimation of allowance for inventory valuation losses

Description

Refer to Note 4(14) for accounting policies on inventory valuation, Note 5 for the uncertainty of
accounting estimates and assumptions applied on inventory valuation, and Note 6(6) for details of
inventory. As of December 31, 2020, the Group’s inventory cost and allowance for valuation losses were
NT$14,026,116 thousand and NT$1,027,332 thousand, respectively.

The Group is primarily engaged in manufacturing and sales of printed circuit board. Due to rapid
technological innovations, short lifespan of electronic products and fluctuations in market prices, there
is a higher risk of inventory losses due to market value decline or obsolescence. The Group measures
inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value and recognises the allowance for inventory
valuation losses based on the inventories over normal age and those individually identified as obsolete
or damaged.

As the amounts of inventories are material, the types of inventories are numerous, and the estimation of
net realisable value for individually obsolete or damaged inventories are subject to judgement, we
consider the estimation of allowance for inventory valuation losses a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in relation to the estimation of allowance for inventory

valuation losses:

A. Assessed the reasonableness of accounting policy on allowance for inventory valuation losses and
checked whether it has been consistently applied.

B. Checked whether the logic in calculating inventory aging report was appropriate and confirmed
whether inventory over normal age has been included in the aging report.

C. Assessed the reasonableness of individually obsolete or damaged inventory identified by the Group
against related supporting documents, reviewed scrap inventory before and after the balance sheet
date, and verified the information obtained from physical count.

D. For net realisable value of inventories over normal age and those individually identified as obsolete
and damaged inventory, discussed with the Group, obtained supporting documents and reviewed

calculation of inventory loss.
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Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed and issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the audit committee) are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of
China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
A. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.
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Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

Description

Refer to Notes 4(16) and 4(19) for accounting policies on property, plant and equipment, Note 5 for the
uncertainty of accounting estimates and assumptions applied on the impairment assessment valuation of
property, plant and equipment, and Note 6(8) for details of property, plant and equipment. As of
December 31, 2020, the property, plant and equipment cost and accumulated depreciation and
impairment were NT$114,539,896 thousand and NT$46,362,721 thousand, respectively.

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group are used for the manufacture of printed circuit boards.
As the market demand changes, the risk of asset impairment also increases. The impairment assessment
involves several subjective judgements, such as the determination of the separate cash flows of a specific
group of assets, useful lives of assets and the future possible income and expenses arising from the assets
depending on asset utilisation and industrial characteristic.

As the assessment is subject to judgement, the accounting estimates may not be reasonable. Thus, we
consider the impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures and verified the recoverable amount calculation in regard

to the Group’s impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment at the balance sheet:

A. Assessed whether the assets impairment assessment procedures and accounting policies are
reasonable and have been applied consistently and reviewed the method used by the Group in
determining the recoverable amount of individual assets.

B. Obtained the information used by the Group in determining the recoverable amount, such as the
determination of the separate cash flows of a specific group of assets, useful lives of assets and the
future possible income and expenses arising from the assets and ascertained whether it is reasonable.

C. Compared the expected future sales revenue growth and profitability with historical data, the trend of

economic and industrial forecasts and checked whether it has been consistent.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the ‘Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by

Securities Issuers’ and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
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B. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

C. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

D. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

E. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

F. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
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were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 30, 2021

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended for use
by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, and their applications in practice.
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ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1)and 8 S 44,222,887 24§ 38,280,304 27
1136 Current financial assets at amortised  6(3) and 8

cost 2,552,215 1 4,790,922 4
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(4) 31,048,067 17 24,259,541 17
1180 Accounts receivable due from related 6(4) and 7

parties, net 2,693,088 2 2,828,109 2
1200 Other receivables 6(35) 1,002,641 1 1,306,347 1
130X Inventories 6(6) 12,998,784 7 8,516,862 6
1410 Prepayments 6(5) 4,780,208 3 3,060,037 2
1460 Non-current assets or disposal groups 6(12)

classified as held for sale, net - - 161,211 -
1470 Other current assets 8 14,115 = 383 -
11XX Total current assets 99,312,005 55 83,203,716 59

Non-current assets

1510 Non-current financial assets at fair 6(2)

value through profit or loss 753,522 - - -
1517 Non-current financial assets at fair 6(7)

value through other comprehensive

income 431,266 - 193,804 -
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(8) and 8 68,177,175 38 46,242,613 33
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(9) 8,609,465 5 8,035,650 6
1780 Intangible assets 6(10) 2,165,029 1 360,370 -
1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(30) 1,285,039 1 1,408,038 1
1990 Other non-current assets 6(11)18)and 8 386,986 - 437,144 1
15XX Total non-current assets 81,808,482 45 56,677,619 41
IXXX  Total assets $ 181,120,487 100§ 139,881,335 100

(Continued)
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ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(13) $ 12,838,545 7 9,682,812 7
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable 6(14) 949,666 - - -
2170 Accounts payable 22,863,017 13 13,838,755 10
2180 Accounts payable to related parties 7 086,556 1 579,010 1
2200 Other payables 6(13) 15,831,329 9 12,449,520 9
2230 Current income tax liabilities 777,204 - 1,848,643 1
2260 Liabilities related to non-current 6(12)
assets or disposal groups classified as
held for sale - - 480,371 -
2280 Current lease liabilities 132,310 - 88,495 -
2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion  6(17) 8,888,537 5 - -
2399 Other current liabilities 156,634 - 65,273 -
21XX Total current liabilities 63,423,798 35 39,032,879 28
Non-current liabilities
2530 Bonds payable 6(16) 10,480,741 6 - -
2540 Long-term borrowings 6(17) 39,986 - 8,980,884 6
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 6(31) 2,022,315 1 972,792 1
2580 Non-current lease liabilities 523,511 - 150,912 -
2600 Other non-current liabilities 592,260 1 399,767 -
25XX Total non-current liabilities 13,658,813 8 10,504,355 7
2XXX Total liabilities 77,082,611 43 49,537,234 35
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of
parent
Share capital 6(20)
3110 Ordinary share 9,470,492 5 9,022,299 7
Capital surplus 6(21)
3200 Capital surplus 35,671,212 19 29,534,781 21
Retained earnings 6(22)
3310 Legal reserve 5,219,158 3 4,350,638 3
3320 Special reserve 5,014,697 3 2,948,306 2
3350 Unappropriated retained earmings 27,429,476 15 26,318,375 19
Other equity interest 6(23)
3400 Other equity interest ( 4,130,316) ( 2).¢ 5,014,697) ( 4)
3500  Treasury shares ( 257,489) - - -
31XX Equity attributable to owners of
parent 78,417,230 43 67,159,702 48
36XX  Non-controlling interest 25,620,646 14 23,184,399 17
3XXX Total equity 104,037,876 57 90,344,101 65
Significant contingent liabilities and
unrecognized contract commitments
3X2X Total liabilities and equity $ 181,120,487 100 § 139,881,335 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT EARNINGS PER SHARE)

For the years ended December 31,

2020 2019
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
4000  Operating revenue 6(24), 7and 14§ 131,278,537 100 % 120,067,508 100
5000  Operating costs 6(6) and 7 ( 104,694,389) ( 80) ( 92,845,499y (  T7)
5950  Gross profit from operations 26,584,148 20 27,222,009 23
Operating expenses 6(25)
6100 Selling expenses ( 1,929,601) ( 1) ( 1,656,854) ( 1)
6200 Administrative expenses ( 4,945,998) ( 4y ( 4,603,636) ( 4)
6300 Research and development
expenses ( 5,545,496) ( 4)( 6,139,768) ( 5)
6450 Expected credit losses in 12
accordance with IFRS 9 ( 22,837) - ( 20,943) -
6000 Total operating expenses ( 12,443,932) ( 9)( 12,421,201) ( 10)
6900 Net operating income 14,140,216 11 14,800,808 13
Non-operating income and
expenses
7100 Interest income 6(27) 686,800 - 1,245,417 1
7010 Other income 6(28) 892,194 1 782,840 1
7020 Other gains and losses 6(29) ( 1,461,852) ( 1) ( 1,190,959) ( 1)
7050 Finance costs 6(30) ( 463,368) - ( 687,198) ( 1)
7000 Total non-operating income
and expenses ( 346,226) - 150,100 -
7900  Profit before income tax 13,793,990 11 14,950,908 13
7950 Income tax expense 6(31) ( 2,285,700) ( 2) ( 2,549,291 ( 2)
8200  Profit $ 11,508,290 9 12,401,617 11
(Continued)
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ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT EARNINGS PER SHARE)

For the years ended December 31,

2020 2019
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Other comprehensive income
Components of other
comprehensive income that will
not be reclassified to profit or
loss
8311 Gains on remeasurements of 6(18)
defined benefit plans $ 14,371 - 9 609 -
8316 Unrealised gains (losses) from — 6(7)(23)
investments in equity
instruments measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income 80,705 - 11,474 -
8349 Income tax related to
components of other
comprehensive income that will
not be reclassified to profit or
loss ( 10,727) - ( 122) -

8310 Components of other
comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit
or loss 84,349 - 11,961 -
Components of other
comprehensive income that will
be reclassified to profit or loss

8361 Exchange differences on 6(23)
translation of foreign financial
statements 1,109,752 1 ( 3,324,465) ( 3)
8300 Other comprehensive income
(loss) $ 1,194,101 1 ($ 3,312,504) ( 3)
8500 Total comprehensive income $ 12,702,391 10 $ 9,089,113 8
Profit attributable to:
8610 Owners of the parent $ 8,094,547 6 $ 8,685,202 8
8620 Non-controlling interests 3,413,743 3 3,716,415 3
$ 11,508,290 9 § 12,401,617 11
Comprehensive income attributable
to:
8710 Owners of the parent $ 8,990,427 7 % 6,619,298 6
8720 Non-controlling interests 3,711,964 3 2,469,815 2
$ 12,702,391 10 $ 9,089,113 8
Basic earnings per share
9750 Basic earnings per share 6(32) $ 8.90 $ 0.93
Diluted earnings per share
9850 Diluted earnings per share 6(32) $ 8.64 $ 9.92

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Retained Earnings

Other equity interest

Unrealised gains

{losses) from
financial assets

Financial statements measured at fair

translation value through other
Unappropriated retained  differences of foreign comprehensive Non-controlling
Notes Special reserve camings operations income Treasury shares Total interest Total equity
For the year ended December 31
2019

Balance at January 1, 2019 1,717,913 $ 23,731,600 (8 2,879.635) (% 68,671 ) § = $ 56,055,207 2,053,373 78,108,580
Profit for the year - 8,685,202 - - - 8,685,202 3,716,415 12,401,617
Other comprehensive income 6(23)

(loss) for the year - 487 ( 2,081,075 ) 14,684 ( 2,065,904 1,246,600 3,312,504 )
Total comprehensive income - 8,685,689 ( 2,081,075 ) 14,684 - 6,619,298 2,469,815 5,089,113
Appropriations and distribution of 6(22)

retained earnings

General reserve - ( 844,779 ) - - - - -
Special reserve 1,230,393 ( 1,230,393 ) - - - - - -
Cash dividends - ( 4,023,742 - - - ( 4,023,742 ) - 4,023,742

Conversion of convertible bonds ~ 6(20)(21) - - - 8,406,454 - 8,406,454
Compensation cost of employee  6(19)

restnicted stock - - - 102,485 38,251 140,736
Changes in non-controlling

interests-distribution of retained

earnings by subsidiaries - - - - - = 1,377,040 ) 1,377,040
Balance at December 31,2019 2,948,306 $ 26,318,375 (8 4,960,710 ) (§ 53,987 ) § - $ 67,159,702 3,184,399 90,344,101

For the vear ended December 31
2020

Balance at January 1, 2020 2,948,306 $ 26,318,375 (8 4.960.710) (§ 53,987 ) § = $ 67,159,702 23,184,399 90,344,101
Profit for the year - 8,094,547 - - - 8,094,547 3,413,743 11,508,290
Other comprehensive income 6(23)

(loss) for the year - 11,499 823,765 60,616 305,880 208,221 1,194,101
Total comprehensive income - 8,106,046 23,765 60,616 8,990,427 3,711,964 12,702,391
Appropriations and distribution of 6(22)
retained earnings

General reserve - ( 868,520 ) - - = o < -
Special reserve 2,066,391 ( 2,066,391 ) - - - = o =
Cash Dividends - ( 4,060,034 ) - - ( 4,060,034 ) - 4,060,034

Recognition of equity component 6(21)
of convertible bonds issued - - - - 996,753 = 996,753
Compensation cost of employee  6(19)
restricted stock - - - - - 75,100 28,030 103,130
Changes in non-controlling
interests - acquisition of shares
from subsidiaries - - - - 11,819 11,819
Changes in non-controlling
interests-distribution of retained
earnings by subsidiaries - - - - 1,315,566 ) 15,5
Due to business combination - - - - ¢ 257,489 ) 5,255,282 - 5,255,282
Balance at December 31,2020 5,014,697 $ 27,429,476 (§ 4,136,945) § 6,629 6] 257,489 ) § 78,417,230 25,620,646 104,037,876

-25.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

For the years ended December 31,
Notes 2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax $ 13,793,990 $ 14,950,908
Adjustments

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)

Depreciation expense 6(25) 8,127,620 7,724,398
Amortisation expense 6(25) 277,397 230,630
Net gains on financial assets at fair value through 6(2)

profit or loss ( 67,484 ) -
Impairment losses 6(8) 114,410 1,447,245
Expected credit losses 12 22,837 20,943
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment  6(29) 150,871 65,454
Gains on disposal of land right-of-use - 9,031)
Interest income 6(27) ( 686,800 ) ( 1,245,417)
Interest expense 6(30) 463,368 687,198
Share-based payment 6(19) 103,130 140,736

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 3,437
Notes receivable 31,507 23,387
Accounts receivable ( 5,883,750 ) ( 3,133,298 )
Accounts receivable due from related parties 5,491 ( 235,921 )
Other receivables 120,050 237,551)
Inventories ( 3,504,744 ) 1,233,198
Prepayments ( 1,595,082 ) 308,515
Other current assets ( 268 ) 264,726
Changes in operating liabilities
Accounts payable 7,446,421  ( 2,268,393 )
Accounts payable to related parties 385,819 ( 421,087 )
Other payables ( 177,360 ) 10,563
Other current liabilities ( 8,001 ) ( 55,038 )
Cash inflow generated from operations 19,119,422 19,505,602
Income tax paid ( 2,171,394 ) ( 3,232,138 )
Net cash flows from operating activities 16,948,028 16,273,464

(Continued)
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ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

For the years ended December 31,

Notes 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash inflows from business combination 6(33) $ 944,497 $ -
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss ( 666,775 ) -
Decrease in financial assets at amortised cost 2,065,133 3,900,819
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income ( 130,800 ) ( 136,192 )
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(34) ( 21,356,238 ) ( 15,195,112 )
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 475,086 231,129
Acquisition of land right-of-use (within 'right-of-use 6(34)
assets') ( 288,300 ) ( 1,015,560 )
Proceeds from disposal of land right-of-use - 42,664
Increase in restricted assets ( 43,252) -
Increase in other non-current assets ( 294,665 ) ( 359,597 )
Increase in other non-current liabilities 242,374 182,392
Interest received 785,077 1,211,861
Net cash flows used in investing activities ( 18,267,863 ) ( 11,137,596 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short-term borrowings 552,015 783,662
Decrease in guarantee deposits received 2,095 80,562
Repayments of long-term borrowings ( 39,952) -
Cash dividends paid 6(22) ( 4,060,034 ) ( 4,023,742 )
Proceeds from issuing convertible bond 11,795,359 -
Repayments of convertible bonds 6(15) - 147,233 )
Payments of lease liabilities ( 122,525) ( 93,137)
Interest paid ( 375,655 ) ( 638,742 )
Change in non-controlling interest - distribution of
retained earnings by subsidiaries ( 1,315,566 ) ( 1,377,040 )
Change in non-controlling interests - acquisition of shares
from subsidiaries 11,819 -
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 6,447,556  ( 5,415,670 )
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents 703,186  ( 1,981,191)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,830,907  ( 2,260,993 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 38,391,980 40,652,973
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 44,222,887 $ 38,391,980
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents reported in the balance sheet $ 44,222,887 $ 38,280,304
Cash and cash equivalents classified non-current assets or
disposal group as held for sale - 111,676
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 44,222 887 $ 38,391,980

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Attachment 4

Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited
ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED
Earnings Distribution for 2020

Units: NT$
Items Amount
Net income after tax $ 8,094,547,076
'(A\l\(ljgté L;?approprlated earnings adjustments for the current year 11,499 084
Adjusted net profit after tax (Note 3) $ 8,106,046,160
Less: 10% general reserve (Note 3) 810,604,616
Add: Reversal of special reserve (Note 4) 884,382,344
Add: Undistributed earnings in previous years 19,323,428,240
Retained earnings available for distribution for this year $ 27,503,252,128
E:)!asstr?gr\}ilggnzrsogﬁlc'}$4.50 per share) 4,261,721,224
Accumulated undistributed earnings at the end of the period $ 23,241,530,904
Note:
1. As of December 31, 2019, the Company's outstanding shares were 947,049,161 shares.

2.

3.

o

The actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans are recognized in other comprehensive
income (net), and is an adjustment for distributable earnings for the current year.

Using the "total amount of after-tax net income for the period and other profit items adjusted
to the current year's undistributed earnings other than after-tax net income for the period" as
the basis for allocating statutory reserve can be applied to the 2020 earning distribution. The
statutory reserve allocated in the previous year does not need to be adjusted retrospectively.
(Reference to Letter No. 1082432410 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs)

Pursuant to the Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-1010012865 of the
Financial Supervisory Commission's Securities and Futures Commission, a special surplus
reserve of the same amount should be included for the net amount of other shareholders'
equity deducted for the current year. Later when the other shareholders' equity deductions
have been reversed, the reversal in surplus will be distributed.

The amount of NT$ is converted according to the balance of US$, the functional currency.
The cash dividends shall be calculated in NT$ (allocated to NT$1) in accordance with
distribution ratio, and below NT$1 will be rounded down.

Chairman: General Manager: Accounting Manager:

Chang-Fang Shen Ting-Chuan Lee Jin-Ten Chang
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Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited

ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED
Comparison Table before and after amendment of the Rules and Procedures of Shareholders’

Attachment 5

Meeting
After amendment Before amendment Reason for
amendment
Article 3. Article 3. Amended in
Paragraphs 1, 2, and 3 omitted. Paragraphs 1, 2, and 3 omitted. accordance
Election or dismissal of directors Election or dismissal of directors or with laws and
(including independent directors), supervisors, amendments to the Articles of | regulations of
amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, reduction of capital, the listing
Incorporation, reduction of capital, application for the approval of ceasing its location.
application for the approval of ceasing its | status as a public company, approval of
status as a public company, approval of competing with the company by directors,
competing with the company by directors, | surplus profit distributed in the form of new
surplus profit distributed in the form of shares, reserve distributed in the form of
new shares, reserve distributed in the new shares, the dissolution, merger, or
form of new shares, the dissolution, demerger of the corporation, or any matter
merger, or demerger of the corporation, or | under the law of R.O.C., shall be set out and
any matter under the law of R.O.C., shall | the essential contents shall be explained in
be set out and the essential contents shall | the notice of the reasons for convening the
be explained in the notice of the reasons | shareholders meeting. None of the above
for convening the shareholders meeting. matters may be raised by an extraordinary
None of the above matters may be raised | motion. The essential contents may be
by an extraordinary motion. posted on the website designated by the
competent authority in charge of securities
affairs or the company, and such website
shall be indicated in the above notice.
Omitted. Omitted.
Article 9. Acrticle 9. Amended in
Paragraph 1 omitted. Paragraph 1 omitted. accordance

2. The chair shall call the meeting to
order at the appointed meeting time,
and simultaneously announce
information in relation to the number
of shares that are not entitled to vote
and the number of shares in
attendance. However, when the
attending shareholders do not
represent a majority of the total
number of issued shares, the chair
may announce a postponement,
provided that no more than two such
postponements, for a combined total
of no more than 1 hour, may be
made. If the quorum is not met after
two postponements and the attending
shareholders still represent less than
one third of the total number of
issued shares, the chair shall declare
the meeting adjourned.

Omitted.

2. The chair shall call the meeting to
order at the appointed meeting time.
However, when the attending
shareholders do not represent a
majority of the total number of issued
shares, the chair may announce a
postponement, provided that no more
than two such postponements, for a
combined total of no more than 1 hour,
may be made. If the quorum is not met
after two postponements and the
attending shareholders still represent
less than one third of the total number
of issued shares, the chair shall declare
the meeting adjourned.

Omitted.

with laws and
regulations of
the listing
location.
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Article 14.

1.

The election of directors (including
independent directors) at a
shareholders meeting shall be held in
accordance with the applicable
election and appointment rules
adopted by the Company and the
voting results shall be announced
on-site immediately, including the
names of those elected as directors
and supervisors and the numbers of
votes with which they were elected
and the names of those who were not

elected and the number of votes they

received.

Paragraph 2 omitted.

Article 14.

1. The election of directors or supervisors
at a shareholders meeting shall be held
in accordance with the applicable
election and appointment rules adopted
by the Company, and the voting results
shall be announced on-site immediately,
including the names of those elected as
directors and supervisors and the
numbers of votes with which they were
elected.

Paragraph 2 omitted.

Amended in
accordance
with laws and
regulations of
the listing
location.
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Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited

Shareholding Status of All Directors

Appendix 1

I.  The Company's paid-in capital of NT$9,470,491,610, and issued outstanding shares
947,049,161 Shares.

Il.  According to the regulations stipulated in the "Rules and Review Procedures for Director
and Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios at Public Companies”, the Company's shares
held by the directors are 30,305,573. The total number of shares held by all directors as
of the book closure date is 309,703,627 shares, which has complied with the legal
regulations.

I11. The Company has established an Audit Committee and therefore the Supervisor has not
applied the applicable laws and regulations.

Book closure date: April 20, 2021

Number of shares

Number of Shares

Title Account Name Date Elected held when elected Held at Current

Chairman  |Chang-Fang Shen 2020.06.19 4,158,000 4,188,000
Foxconn (Far East) Limited

Director Legal representative: 2020.06.19 305,515,627 305,515,627
Che-Hung Yu

Director John-See Lee 2020.06.19 0 0

Director Ting-Chuan Li 2020.06.19 0 0

Independent |y heng Chou 2020.06.19 0 0

Director

Independent |~ £ Chien 2020.06.19 0 0

Director

Independent |~ Licien Lee 2020.06.19 0 0

Director

Total Shareholding of Directors 309,673,627 309,703,627
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Appendix 2

Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited
Rules and Procedures of Shareholders' Meeting

Article 1. According to the basis

To establish a strong governance system and sound supervisory capabilities for this
Corporation's shareholders' meetings, and to strengthen management capabilities, these
Rules are adopted pursuant to Article 5 of the Corporate Governance Best-Practice
Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies for compliance.

Article 2.

Article 3.

Scope of Review

The rules and procedures for the Company's shareholders' meetings, the content of the
major issues, the operating procedures, and the minutes of the meeting, and the matters
to be complied with shall be stated in the provisions of these Regulations.

Convening Shareholders' Meeting

Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, this Corporation's shareholders
meetings shall be convened by the board of directors.

The Company shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders meeting
notice and proxy forms, and the origins of and explanatory materials relating to
all proposals, including proposals for ratification, matters for deliberation, or the
election or dismissal of directors or supervisors, and upload them to the Market
Observation Post System (MOPS) before 30 days before the date of a regular
shareholders meeting or before 15 days before the date of a special shareholders
meeting. The Company shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders
meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials and upload them to the
MOPS before 21 days before the date of the regular shareholders meeting or
before 15 days before the date of the special shareholders meeting. In addition,
before 15 days before the date of the shareholders meeting, the Company shall
also have prepared the shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental meeting
materials and made them available for review by shareholders at any time. The
meeting agenda and supplemental materials shall also be displayed at the
Company and the professional shareholder services agent designated thereby as
well as being distributed on-site at the meeting place.

The reasons for convening a shareholders meeting shall be specified in the
meeting notice and public announcement. With the consent of the addressee, the
meeting notice may be given in electronic form.

Election or dismissal of directors or supervisors, amendments to the Articles of
Incorporation, reduction of capital, application for the approval of ceasing its
status as a public company, approval of competing with the company by
directors, surplus profit distributed in the form of new shares, reserve distributed
in the form of new shares, the dissolution, merger, or demerger of the
corporation, or any matter under the law of R.O.C., shall be set out and the
essential contents shall be explained in the notice of the reasons for convening
the shareholders meeting. None of the above matters may be raised by an
extraordinary motion. The essential contents may be posted on the website
designated by the competent authority in charge of securities affairs or the
company, and such website shall be indicated in the above notice.
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Article 4.

Article 5.

VI.

VII.

VIIIL.

The reasons for convening a shareholders meeting shall indicate the re-election
of directors and the tenure of office of such directors. After re-election is
completed at the shareholders' meeting, the tenure dates may not be changed by
an extraordinary motion or other method at the same shareholders' meeting.

A shareholder holding 1 percent or more of the total number of issued shares
may submit to this Corporation a written proposal for discussion at a regular
shareholders meeting. Such proposals, however, are limited to one item only, and
no proposal containing more than one item will be included in the meeting
agenda. In addition, when the circumstances of any subparagraph of Article
172-1, paragraph 4 of the Company Act apply to a proposal put forward by a
shareholder, the board of directors may exclude it from the agenda.

Prior to the book closure date before a regular shareholders meeting is held, the
Company shall publicly announce that it will receive shareholder proposals, and
the location and time period for their submission; the period for submission of
shareholder proposals may not be less than 10 days.

Shareholder-submitted proposals are limited to 300 words, and no proposal
containing more than 300 words will be included in the meeting agenda. The
shareholder making the proposal shall be present in person or by proxy at the
regular shareholders meeting and take part in discussion of the proposal.

Prior to the date for issuance of notice of a shareholders meeting, the Company
shall inform the shareholders who submitted proposals of the proposal screening
results, and shall list in the meeting notice the proposals that conform to the
provisions of this article. At the shareholders meeting the board of directors shall
explain the reasons for exclusion of any shareholder proposals not included in
the agenda.

Proxy Form

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the
meeting by providing the proxy form issued by the Company and stating the
scope of the proxy's authorization.

A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for
any given shareholders meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to the
Company before 5 days before the date of the shareholders meeting. When
duplicate proxy forms are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail unless
a declaration is made to cancel the previous proxy appointment.

After a proxy form has been delivered to this Corporation, if the shareholder
intends to attend the meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by
correspondence or electronically, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall be
submitted to the Company before 2 business days before the meeting date. If the
cancellation notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the
proxy shall prevail.

Principles determining the time and place of a shareholders meeting

The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the premises of the Company, or a place
easily accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders meeting. The meeting
may begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be
given to the opinions of the independent directors with respect to the place and time of
the meeting.
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Article 6. Preparation of documents such as the attendance book and attendance book for proxy

VI.

The Company shall specify in its shareholders meeting notices the time during
which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, the place to register
for attendance, and other matters for attention.

The time during which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, as
stated in the preceding paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the time
the meeting commences. The place at which attendance registrations are
accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient number of suitable personnel
assigned to handle the registrations.

Shareholders and their proxies (collectively, "shareholders™) shall attend
shareholders’ meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other
certificates of attendance. The Company may not arbitrarily add requirements
for other documents beyond those showing eligibility to attend presented by
shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy forms shall also bring identification
documents for verification.

The Company shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance book
to sign, or attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing
in.

The Company shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda
book, annual report, attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips, and other
meeting materials. Where there is an election of directors or supervisors,
pre-printed ballots shall also be furnished.

When the government or a juristic person is a shareholder, it may be represented
by more than one representative at a shareholders meeting. When a juristic
person is appointed to attend as proxy, it may designate only one person to
represent it in the meeting.

Article 7. Chairman and Acting as the Agent

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting
shall be chaired by the chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the
board is on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the
chairperson, the vice chairperson shall act in place of the chairperson; if there is
no vice chairperson or the vice chairperson also is on leave or for any reason
unable to exercise the powers of the vice chairperson, the chairperson shall
appoint one of the managing directors to act as chair, or, if there are no
managing directors, one of the directors shall be appointed to act as chair. Where
the chairperson does not make such a designation, the managing directors or the
directors shall select from among themselves one person to serve as chair.

When a managing director or a director serves as chair, as referred to in the
preceding paragraph, the managing director or director shall be one who has held
that position for six months or more and who understands the financial and
business conditions of the company. he same shall be true for a representative of
a juristic person director that serves as chair.

It is advisable that shareholders' meetings convened by the board of directors be
chaired by the chairperson of the board in person and attended by a majority of
the directors, at least one supervisor in person, and at least one member of each
functional committee on behalf of the committee. The attendance shall be
recorded in the meeting minutes.

If a shareholders meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but
other than the board of directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting.
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V.

When there are two or more such convening parties, they shall mutually select a
chair from among themselves.

The Company may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related
persons retained by it to attend a shareholders meeting.

Article 8. Documentation of a shareholders meeting by audio or video

The Company, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance
registrations, shall make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the
registration procedure, the proceedings of the shareholders meeting, and the
voting and vote counting procedures.

The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph shall be retained for at least 1
year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the
Company Act, the recording shall be retained until the conclusion of the
litigation.

Article 9. Shareholders' Meeting Attendance and Voting

Attendance at shareholders' meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of
shares. The number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the
shares indicated by the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in plus the
number of shares whose voting rights are exercised by correspondence or
electronically.

The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time. However,
when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number
of issued shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more
than two such postponements, for a combined total of no more than 1 hour, may
be made. If the quorum is not met after two postponements and the attending
shareholders still represent less than one third of the total number of issued
shares, the chair shall declare the meeting adjourned.

If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding
paragraph, but the attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total
number of issued shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to
Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all shareholders shall be notified
of the tentative resolution and another shareholders meeting shall be convened
within 1 month.

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a
majority of the total number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the
tentative resolution for a vote by the shareholders meeting pursuant to Article
174 of the Company Act.

Article 10. Convening and Agenda of Shareholders' Meeting

If the shareholders' meeting is convened by the board of directors, the board of
directors shall determine the meeting agenda. Meeting agenda (including
extraordinary motions and amendments to the original agendas) shall be voted
by poll. The meeting shall proceed in the order set by the agenda, which may not
be changed without a resolution of the shareholders' meeting.

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a
shareholders meeting convened by a party with the power to convene that is not
the board of directors.

The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of
deliberation on the meeting agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including
extraordinary motions), except by a resolution of the shareholders meeting. If the
chair declares the meeting adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure, the
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other members of the board of directors shall promptly assist the attending
shareholders in electing a new chair in accordance with statutory procedures, by
agreement of a majority of the votes represented by the attending shareholders,
and then continue the meeting.

The Chairman must allow adequate time to explain and discuss the various
agenda items, amendments or special motions proposed during the meeting. The
Chairman may announce to discontinue further discussion if the issue in
question is considered to have been sufficiently discussed, proceed with the
voting, and arrange sufficient time to vote.

Article 11. Shareholder's Speech

V.

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker's slip the
subject of the speech, his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card
number), and account name. The order in which shareholders speak will be set
by the chair.

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not
actually speak shall be deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the
speech does not correspond to the subject given on the speaker’s slip, the spoken
content shall prevail. Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not
speak more than twice on the same proposal, and a single speech may not exceed
5 minutes. If the shareholder's speech violates the rules or exceeds the scope of
the agenda item, the chair may terminate the speech.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or
interrupt unless they have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the
shareholder that has the floor; the chair shall stop any violation.

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to
attend a shareholders meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may
speak on the same proposal.

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or
direct relevant personnel to respond.

Article 12. Calculation of voting shares

\oting at a shareholders meeting shall be calculated based the number of shares.

With respect to resolutions of shareholders' meetings, the number of shares held
by a shareholder with no voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total
number of issued shares.

When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there
is the likelihood that such a relationship would prejudice the interests of this
Corporation, that shareholder may not vote on that item, and may not exercise
voting rights as proxy for any other shareholder.

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the
preceding paragraph shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights
represented by attending shareholders.

With the exception of a trust enterprise or a shareholder services agent approved
by the competent securities authority, when one person is concurrently appointed
as proxy by two or more shareholders, the voting rights represented by that
proxy may not exceed 3 percent of the voting rights represented by the total
number of issued shares. If that percentage is exceeded, the voting rights in
excess of that percentage shall not be included in the calculation.
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Avrticle 13. Exercise of voting rights

VI.

VII.

VIII.

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the
shares are restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179,
paragraph 2 of the Company Act.

\oting rights shall be exercised electronically and may be exercised in writing
during a shareholders’ meeting. When voting rights are exercised by
correspondence or electronic means, the method of exercise shall be specified in
the shareholders meeting notice. A shareholder exercising voting rights by
correspondence or electronic means will be deemed to have attended the meeting
in person. but to have waived his/her rights with respect to the extraordinary
motions and amendments to original proposals of that meeting.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or
electronic means under the preceding paragraph shall deliver a written
declaration of intent to this Corporation before 5 days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. When duplicate declarations of intent are delivered, the
one received earliest shall prevail, except when a declaration is made to cancel
the earlier declaration of intent.

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic
means, in the event the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders meeting in
person, a written declaration of intent to retract the voting rights already
exercised under the preceding paragraph shall be made known to the Company,
by the same means by which the voting rights were exercised, before 2 business
days before the date of the shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction is
submitted after that time, the voting rights already exercised by correspondence
or electronic means shall prevail. When a shareholder has exercised voting rights
both by correspondence or electronic means and by appointing a proxy to attend
a shareholders meeting, the voting rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting
shall prevail.

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in this Corporation's
articles of incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative
vote of a majority of the voting rights represented by the attending shareholders.
At the time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a person designated by the
chair shall first announce the total number of voting rights represented by the
attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the shareholders. After the
conclusion of the meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for each
proposal, based on the numbers of votes for and against and the number of
abstentions, shall be entered into the MOPS.

If the Chair consulted all the shareholders present at the meeting, the proposal is
deemed to be passed. If there is a dissent, the motion shall be voted on by the
same basis as the voting method. If a dissent is found, a poll shall be taken.

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall
present the amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal
and decide the order in which they will be put to a vote. When any one among
them is passed, the other proposals will then be deemed rejected, and no further
voting shall be required.

\Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be
appointed by the chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be
shareholders of this Corporation.

\ote counting for shareholders meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted
in public at the place of the shareholders meeting. Immediately after vote
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X.

counting has been completed, the results of the voting, including the statistical
tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and a
record made of the vote.

When the Company adopts electronic voting by a shareholder meeting, it shall
avoid the audio and tear of the motion and amendment of the original motion.

Article 14. Election of Directors and Independent Directors

The election of directors or supervisors at a shareholders meeting shall be held in
accordance with the applicable election and appointment rules adopted by the
Company, and the voting results shall be announced on-site immediately,
including the names of those elected as directors and supervisors and the
numbers of votes with which they were elected.

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed
with the signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at
least 1 year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of
the Company Act, the ballots shall be retained until the conclusion of the
litigation.

Article 15. Minutes of Shareholders' Meetings

Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders meeting shall be recorded in
the meeting minutes. The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair
of the meeting and a copy distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after
the conclusion of the meeting. The meeting minutes may be produced and
distributed in electronic form.

The Company may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding paragraph by
means of a public announcement made through the MOPS.

The meeting minutes shall detail the date and venue of the meeting, the
Chairman's name, the method of resolution, and the proceeding and voting
results of various meeting agenda items (including the statistical tallies of the
numbers of votes). For election of directors, the number of votes of each
candidate shall be disclosed. These minutes must be retained for as long as the
company is in existence.

If the aforementioned method of resolution is consulted by the Chairman, the
shareholders' meeting shall be consulted. If a shareholder has no objection to the
proposal, the Company shall record the "Chairman consulted all the shareholders
present, and they shall record the voting method and the percentage of voting
resolved and approved.” However, the shareholders' meeting shall record the
voting method and the percentage of voting votes.

Article 16. Public disclosure

On the day of a shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall compile in the
prescribed format a statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by
solicitors through solicitation and the number of shares represented by proxies,
and shall make an express disclosure of the same at the place of the shareholders
meeting.

If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders meeting constitute material
information under applicable laws or regulations or under Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation regulations, the Company shall upload the content of
such resolution to the MOPS within the prescribed time period.
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Article 17. Staff handling affairs of the shareholders' meeting

Article 18.

Article 19.

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear
identification cards or arm bands.

The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at
the meeting place. When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at
the meeting place, they shall wear an identification card or armband bearing the
word "Proctor.”

At the place of a shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak
through any device other than the public address equipment set up by the
Company, the chair may prevent the shareholder from so doing.

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's
correction, obstructing the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the
chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to escort the shareholder from
the meeting.

Recess and resumption of a shareholders meeting

When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time
considerations. If a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting
temporarily suspended and announce a time when, in view of the circumstances,
the meeting will be resumed.

If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of the
items (including extraordinary motions) on the meeting agenda have been
addressed, the shareholders meeting may adopt a resolution to resume the
meeting at another venue.

A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders meeting to defer or resume the
meeting within 5 days in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act.

Implementation and Amendment
These Rules, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after adoption by
shareholders' meetings.
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Appendix 3

THE COMPANIES LAW (2020 REVISION)
OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

FOURTEENTH AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

OF
ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED
(Adopted by a Special Resolution passed on June 19, 2020)

Table A

The regulations in Table A in the First Schedule to the Law (as defined below) do not apply
to the Company.

INTERPRETATION

Definitions

1.1  In these Amended and Restated Articles, the following words and expressions shall,
where not inconsistent with the context, have the following meanings, respectively:

Applicable Law the Applicable Public Company Rules, the Law or such
other rules or legislation applicable to the Company;

Applicable Public the ROC laws, rules and regulations (including, without

Company Rules limitation, the Company Law, the Securities and Exchange

Law, the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act, the rules
and regulations promulgated by the FSC and the rules and
regulations promulgated by the TSE, as amended from
time to time) affecting public reporting companies or
companies listed on any ROC stock exchange or securities
market that from time to time are required by the relevant
regulator as applicable to the Company;

Appointed has the meaning given thereto in Article 34.5;
Representative

Articles these Articles of Association as altered from time to time;
Audit Committee the audit committee of the Board, which shall comprise

solely of Independent Directors of the Company;

Board the board of directors appointed or elected pursuant to
these Articles and acting at a meeting of directors at which
there is a quorum in accordance with these Articles;
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Capital Reserve

Chairman

Company

Compensation
Committee

Cumulative Voting
Directors

Dissenting Member
Dividend

Electronic Record

Electronic
Transactions Law

FSC

Independent
Directors

Joint Operation
Contract

Law

Lease Contract

Management
Contract

for the purpose of these Articles only, comprises of the
premium paid on the issuance of any share and income
from endowments received by the Company under the
Law;

the Director elected amongst all the Directors as the
chairman of the Board;

Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limitedzk & F $ 45 % ik
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yd F K‘lé ;],

a committee of the Board, which shall be comprised of
professional individuals and having the functions, in each
case, prescribed by the Applicable Public Company Rules;

the voting mechanism for an election of Directors as
described in Article 34.2;

the directors for the time being of the Company and shall
include any and all Independent Director(s);

has the meaning given thereto in Article 27.2;

means any dividend resolved to be paid on the shares of
the Company pursuant to the Articles;

has the same meaning as in the Electronic Transactions
Law;

the Electronic Transactions Law (2003 Revision) of the
Cayman lIslands;

the Financial Supervisory Commission of the ROC;

the Directors who are elected as "Independent Directors”
in accordance with the Applicable Public Company Rules;

a contract between the Company and one or more
person(s) or entit(ies) where the parties thereto agree to
pursue the same business venture and jointly bear losses
and enjoy profits arising out of such business venture in
accordance with the terms thereof;

The Companies Law (2020 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands and every modification, reenactment or revision
thereof for the time being in force;

a contract or arrangement between the Company and any
other person(s) pursuant to which such person(s) lease or
rent from the Company the necessary means and assets to
operate the whole business of the Company in the name of
such person, and as consideration, the Company receives a
pre-determined compensation from such person;

a contract or arrangement between the Company and any
other person(s) pursuant to which such person(s) manage
and operate the business of the Company in the name of
and for the benefit of the Company, and as consideration,
such person(s) receive a pre-determined compensation
from the Company while the Company continues to be
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Market Observation
Post System

Member

Memorandum
Merger

month
Notice

Officer

Ordinary Resolution

Private Placement

Preferred Shares

Register of Directors
and Officers

Register of Members

Registered Office
Replacement

entitled to the profits (or losses) of such business;

the public company reporting system maintained by the
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, via
http://newmopsov.twse.com.tw/;

the person registered in the Register of Members as the
holder of shares in the Company and, when two or more
persons are so registered as joint holders of shares, means
the person whose name stands first in the Register of
Members as one of such joint holders or all of such
persons, as the context so requires;

the memorandum of association of the Company;

a transaction whereby:

(@) a "merger" or "consolidation” as defined under the
Law; or

(b) other forms of mergers and acquisitions which fall
within the definition of "merger" or "acquisition™ under the
Applicable Public Company Rules;

calendar month;

written notice as further provided in these Articles unless
otherwise specifically stated;

any person appointed by the Board to hold an office in the
Company;

a resolution passed at a general meeting (or, if so specified,
a meeting of Members holding a class of shares) of the
Company by not less than a simple majority of the votes
cast;

means, after the shares are listed on the TSE, obtaining
subscription for, or the sale of, shares, options, warrants,
rights of holders of debt or equity securities which enable
those holders to subscribe further securities (including
shares), or other securities of the Company, either by the
Company itself or a person authorized by the Company,
primarily from or to specific investors in the ROC as
prescribed under the Applicable Public Company Rules
and permitted by the competent securities authority in the
ROC, but excluding any employee incentive programme or
subscription agreement, warrant, option or issuance of
Shares under Articles 2.5, 2.8 and 2.10 hereof;

has the meaning given thereto in Article 6;

the register of directors and officers referred to in these
Articles;

the register of members of the Company maintained in
accordance with the Law and (as long as the Company is
listed on the TSE,) the Applicable Public Company Rules;

the registered office for the time being of the Company;
has the meaning given thereto in Article 34.6;
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Restricted Shares
ROC
Seal

Secretary

share(s)
Share Swap

Share Exchange

Special Resolution

Spin-off

Subsidiary

Supermajority

has the meaning given thereto in Article 2.5;
Taiwan, the Republic of China;

the common seal or any official or duplicate seal of the
Company;

the person appointed to perform any or all of the duties of
secretary of the Company and includes any deputy or
assistant secretary and any person appointed by the Board
to perform any of the duties of the Secretary;

share(s) of par value NT$10 each in the Company;

a 100% share swap as defined in the ROC Business
Mergers and Acquisitions Act whereby a company (the
"Acquiring Company") acquires all the issued and
outstanding shares of another company with the
consideration being the shares of the Acquiring Company,
cash or other assets;

a share exchange as permitted under the ROC Company
Act whereby a company acquires a portion of the issued
and outstanding shares of another company with the
consideration being the newly issued shares of such
acquiring company;

Subject to the Law, means a resolution passed at a general
meeting of the Company by a majority of at least
two-thirds of the votes cast by such Members who, being
entitled to do so, vote in person or by their proxies, or, in
the case of Members that are corporations or other
non-natural  person, by their duly authorised
representatives by computing the number of votes to which
each Member is entitled;

a spin-off as defined in the ROC Business Mergers and
Acquisitions Act whereby a company transfers a part or all
of its business that may be operated independently to an
existing company or a newly incorporated company (the
"Acquirer™) with the consideration being the shares of the
Acquirer, cash or other assets;

with respect to any company, (1) the entity, one half or
more of whose total number of the issued voting shares or
the total amount of the share capital are directly or
indirectly held by such company; (2) the entity that such
company has a direct or indirect control over its personnel,
financial or business operation; (3) the entity, one half or
more of whose shareholders involved in management or
board of directors are concurrently acting as the
shareholders involved in management or board of directors
of such company; and (4) the entity, one half or more of
whose total number of issued voting shares or the total
amount of the share capital are held by the same
shareholder(s) of such company;

a resolution passed by a majority vote of the Members
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Resolution present at a general meeting attended by Members who

represent two-thirds or more of the total issued shares or, if
the total number of shares represented by the Members
present at the general meeting is less than two-thirds of the
total issued shares, but more than one half of the total
issued shares, means instead, a resolution passed by
two-thirds or more of votes cast by the Members present at
such general meeting;

Treasury Shares has the meaning given thereto in Article 3.12;
TDCC means the Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation;
TSE the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation; and

year

calendar year.

1.2 In these Articles, where not inconsistent with the context:

(@)
(b)
(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)

(h)

words denoting the plural number include the singular number and vice versa;
words denoting the masculine gender include the feminine and neuter genders;

words importing persons include companies, associations or bodies of persons
whether corporate or not;

the words:-
() "may" shall be construed as permissive; and
(it) "shall" shall be construed as imperative;

"written™ and "in writing" include all modes of representing or reproducing
words in visible form, including the form of an Electronic Record;

a reference to statutory provision shall be deemed to include any amendment
or re-enactment thereof;

unless otherwise provided herein, words or expressions defined in the Law
shall bear the same meaning in these Articles; and

Section 8 of the Electronic Transactions Law shall not apply to the extent that
it imposes obligations or requirements in addition to those set out in these
Articles.

1.3 In these Articles expressions referring to writing or its cognates shall, unless the
contrary intention appears, include facsimile, printing, lithography, photography,
electronic mail and other modes of representing words in visible form.

1.4  Headings used in these Articles are for convenience only and are not to be used or
relied upon in the construction hereof.

SHARES

Power to Issue Shares

2.1  Subject to these Articles and any resolution of the Members to the contrary, and
without prejudice to any special rights previously conferred on the holders of any
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2.2

2.3

2.4

existing shares or class of shares, the Board shall have the power to issue any
unissued shares of the Company on such terms and conditions as it may determine
and any shares or class of shares (including the issue or grant of options, warrants and
other rights, renounceable or otherwise in respect of shares) may be issued with such
preferred, deferred or other special rights or such restrictions, whether in regard to
dividend, voting, return of capital, or otherwise as the Company may by resolution of
the Members prescribe, provided that no share shall be issued at a discount except in
accordance with the Law.

Unless otherwise provided in these Articles, the issue of new shares of the Company
shall be approved by the Board. The issue of new shares shall at all times be subject
to the sufficiency of the authorized capital of the Company.

Where the Company increases its issued share capital by issuing new shares for cash
consideration in the ROC, the Company shall allocate 10% of the total amount of the
new shares to be issued, for offering in the ROC to the public ("Public Offering
Portion") unless it is not necessary or appropriate, as determined by the FSC or TSE
for the Company to conduct the aforementioned public offering. However, if a
percentage higher than the aforementioned 10% is resolved by the Members in a
general meeting by Ordinary Resolution to be offered, the percentage determined by
such resolution shall prevail and shares corresponding to such percentage shall be
reserved as Public Offering Portion. The Company shall also reserve 10% to 15%
of such new shares for subscription by the employees of the Company and its
Subsidiaries (the “Employee Subscription Portion”).

Unless otherwise resolved by the Members in general meeting by Ordinary
Resolution, where the Company increases its issued share capital by issuing new
shares for cash consideration, after allocation of the Public Offering Portion and the
Employee Subscription Portion pursuant to Article 2.3 hereof, the Company shall
make a public announcement and notify each Member that he is entitled to exercise a
pre-emptive right to purchase his pro rata portion of the remaining new shares, to be
issued in the capital increase for cash consideration. The Company shall state in
such announcement and notices to the Members the procedures for exercising such
pre-emptive rights. Where an exercise of the pre-emptive right may result in
fractional entitlement of a Member, the entitlements (including fractional entitlements)
of two or more Members may be combined to jointly subscribe for one or more whole
new shares in the name of a single Member, subject to compliance with such
directions and terms and conditions as determined by the Board and the Applicable
Public Company Rules. If the total number of the new shares to be issued has not
been fully subscribed for by the Members within the prescribed period, the Company
may consolidate such shares into the public offering tranche or offer any
un-subscribed new shares to a specific person or persons in such manner as is
consistent with the Applicable Public Company Rules.

If any person who has subscribed the new shares fails to pay when due any amount of
the subscription price within the payment period as determined by the Company, the
Company shall fix a period of no less than one month and demand for payment of the
subscription price or the Company may declare a forfeiture of the subscription. No
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2.5

2.6

2.7
2.8

2.9

forfeiture of such subscription shall be declared as against any such person unless the
amount due thereon shall remain unpaid for such period after such demand has been
made. Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding sentence, forfeiture of the
subscription may be declared without the demand process if the payment period for
subscription price set by the Company is one month or longer. Upon forfeiture of
the subscription, the shares remaining unsubscribed to shall be offered for
subscription in such manner as is consistent with the Applicable Public Company
Rules.

Subject to the provisions of the Law, the Company may issue new shares with
restricted rights (“"Restricted Shares™) to employees of the Company and its
Subsidiaries with the sanction of a Supermajority Resolution provided that Article 2.3
hereof shall not apply in respect of the issue of such shares. For so long as the
shares are listed on the TSE, the terms of issue of Restricted Shares, including but not
limited to the number of Restricted Shares so issued, issue price of Restricted Shares
and other related matters shall be in accordance with the Applicable Public Company
Rules.

The pre-emptive right of employees under Article 2.3 and the pre-emptive right of
Members under Article 2.4 shall not apply in the event that new shares are issued due
to the following reasons or for the following purposes:

(@  in connection with a Merger, Share Swap, Share Exchange, Spin-off, or
pursuant to any reorganization of the Company;

(b) in connection with meeting the Company's obligations under share
subscription warrants and/or options, including those rendered in Articles 2.8
and 2.10 hereof;

()  in connection with the issue of Restricted Shares in accordance with Article
2.5 hererof;

(d) in connection with meeting the Company’s obligations under convertible
bonds or corporate bonds vested with rights to acquire shares;

(e)  in connection with meeting the Company’s obligations under Preferred Shares
vested with rights to acquire shares;

)] in connection with the issue of shares in accordance with Article 13.8; or
(g)  inconnection with Private Placement of the securities issued by the Company.
The Company shall not issue any unpaid shares or partly paid shares.

Notwithstanding Article 2.5 hereof, the Company may, upon approval by a majority
of the Directors at a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of the total number of the
Directors, adopt one or more employee incentive programmes and may issue shares
or options, warrants or other similar instruments, to employees of the Company and
its Subsidiaries, and for the avoidance of doubt, resolution of the Members is not
required.

Options, warrants or other similar instruments issued in accordance with Article 2.8
above are not transferable save by inheritance.

- 46 -



2.10

The Company may enter into agreements with employees of the Company and/or the
employees of its Subsidiaries in relation to the incentive programme approved
pursuant to Article 2.8 above, whereby employees may subscribe for, within a
specific period, a specific number of the shares. The terms and conditions of such
agreements shall be no less restrictive on the relevant employee than the terms
specified in the applicable incentive programme.

Redemption and Purchase of Shares

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7
3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Subject to the Law, the Company is authorised to issue shares which are to be
redeemed or are liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or a Member.

The Company is authorised to make payments in respect of the redemption of its
shares out of capital or out of any other account or fund authorised for this purpose in
accordance with the Law.

The redemption price of a redeemable share, or the method of calculation thereof,
shall be fixed by the Board at or before the time of issue.

Every share certificate relating to redeemable share shall indicate that the share is
redeemable.

Subject to the provisions of the Law and these Articles, the Company may, upon
approval by a majority of the Directors at a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of
the total number of the Directors, purchase its own shares (including any redeemable
shares) on such terms and in such manner as the Directors may determine.

In the event that the Company proposes to purchase any share listed on the TSE
pursuant to the preceding Article, the resolution of the Board approving such proposal
and the implementation thereof should be reported to the Members in the next general
meeting in accordance with the Applicable Public Company Rules. Such reporting
obligation shall also apply even if the Company does not implement the proposal to
purchase its shares listed on the TSE for any reason.

The redemption price may be paid in any manner authorised by Article 15.1.

A delay in payment of the redemption price shall not affect the redemption but, in the
case of a delay of more than thirty days, interest shall be paid for the period from the
due date until actual payment at a rate which the Directors, after due enquiry, estimate
to be representative of the rates being offered by banks holding “A” licenses (as
defined in the Banks and Trust Companies Law (2020 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands) in the Cayman Islands for thirty day deposits in the same currency.

The Directors may exercise as they think fit the powers conferred on the Company by
Section 37(5) of the Law (payment out of capital) but only if and to the extent that the
redemption could not otherwise be made (or not without making a fresh issue of
shares for this purpose).

Subject as aforesaid, the Directors may determine, as they think fit all questions that
may arise concerning the manner in which the redemption of the shares shall or may
be effected.

No share may be redeemed unless it is fully paid.
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3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Shares that the Company purchases, redeems or acquires (by way of surrender or
otherwise) shall be cancelled immediately or held as treasury shares (“Treasury
Shares") at the discretion of the Directors.

No Dividend may be declared or paid, and no other distribution (whether in cash or
otherwise) of the Company's assets (including any distribution of assets to Members
on a winding up of the Company) may be made to the Company in respect of a
Treasury Share.

The Company shall be entered in the Register of Members as the holder of the
Treasury Shares provided that:

(@  the Company shall not be treated as a Member for any purpose and shall not
exercise any right in respect of the Treasury Shares, and any purported
exercise of such a right shall be void;

(b)  aTreasury Share shall not be voted, directly or indirectly, at any meeting of the
Company and shall not be counted in determining the total number of issued
shares at any given time, whether for the purposes of these Articles or the Law.

Any proposal to transfer the Treasury Shares to the employees of the Company and its
Subsidiaries at a price below the average actual repurchase price must be approved by
Special Resolution in the next general meeting and the items required by the
Applicable Public Company Rules shall be specified in the notice of the general
meeting and may not be proposed as an extemporary motion. The aggregate number
of Treasury Shares resolved at all general meetings and transferred to the employees
of the Company and its Subsidiaries shall not exceed 5% of the total issued shares,
and each employee may not subscribe for more than 0.5% of the total issued shares in
aggregate. The Company may prohibit such employees from transferring such
Treasury Shares within a certain period; provided, however, that such a period cannot
be more than two years.

Subject to Article 3.15, Treasury Shares may be disposed of by the Company on such
terms and conditions as determined by the Directors.

Rights Attaching to Shares

Subject to Article 2.1, the Memorandum and these Articles, other contractual obligations or
restrictions that the Company is bound by and any resolution of the Members to the contrary
and without prejudice to any special rights conferred thereby on the holders of any other
shares or class of shares, the share capital of the Company shall be divided into shares of a
single class the holders of which shall, subject to the provisions of these Articles:

(a)
(b)

(©)

(d)

be entitled to one vote per share;

be entitled to such Dividends as recommended by the Board and approved by the
Members at general meeting;

in the event of a winding-up or dissolution of the Company, whether voluntary or
involuntary or for the purpose of a reorganization or otherwise or upon any
distribution of capital, be entitled to the surplus assets of the Company; and

generally be entitled to enjoy all of the rights attaching to shares.
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5.

Share Certificates

5.1

5.2

5.3
5.4

5.5

Shares of the Company shall be issued in uncertificated/scripless form unless the
issuance of share certificates is required by the provisions of the Applicable Public
Company Rules. Where share certificates are issued, every Member shall be entitled
to a certificate issued under the Seal (or a facsimile thereof), which shall be affixed or
imprinted with the authority of the Board, specifying the number and, where
appropriate, the class of shares held by such Member. The Board may by resolution
determine, either generally or in a particular case, that any or all signatures on
certificates may be printed thereon or affixed by mechanical means.

If any share certificate shall be proved to the satisfaction of the Board to have been
worn out, lost, mislaid, or destroyed the Board may cause a new certificate to be
issued and request an indemnity for the lost certificate if it sees fit.

Share may not be issued in bearer form.

When the Company shall issue share certificates pursuant to Article 5.1 hereof, the
Company shall deliver the share certificates to the subscribers within thirty (30) days
from the date such share certificates may be issued pursuant to the Law, the
Memorandum, the Articles, and the Applicable Public Company Rules, and shall
make a public announcement prior to the delivery of such share certificates pursuant
to the Applicable Public Company Rules.

Where the Company shall issue the shares in uncertificated/scripless form, the
Company shall upon the issue of such shares cause the name of the subscriber and
other particulars to be entered onto the Register of Members in accordance with the
Law and the Applicable Public Company Rules.

Preferred Shares

6.1

6.2

Notwithstanding any provisions of these Articles, the Company may by Special
Resolution designate one or more classes of shares with preferred or other special
rights as the Company, by Special Resolution, may determine (shares with such
preferred or other special rights, the "Preferred Shares"), and cause to be set forth in
these Articles.

The rights and obligations of Preferred Shares may include (but not limited to) the
following terms and shall be consistent with the Applicable Public Company Rules:

(@  the order of priority and fixed amount or fixed ratio of allocation of Dividends
and bonus on Preferred Shares;

(b)  the order of priority and fixed amount or fixed ratio of allocation of surplus
assets of the Company;

(c)  the order of priority for or restriction on the voting right(s) (including
declaring no voting rights whatsoever) of the Members holding the Preferred
Shares;

(d)  the method by which the Company is authorized or compelled to redeem the
Preferred Shares, or a statement that redemption rights shall not apply; and
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(e)  other matters concerning rights and obligations incidental to Preferred Shares.

REGISTRATION OF SHARES

Register of Members

(a)

(b)

For so long as shares are listed on the TSE, the Board shall cause to be kept a
Register of Members which may be kept outside the Cayman Islands at such place as
the Directors shall appoint and which shall be maintained in accordance with the Law
and the Applicable Public Company Rules.

In the event that the Company has shares that are not listed on the TSE, the Company
shall also cause to be kept a register of such shares in accordance with Section 40 of
the Law.

Registered Holder Absolute Owner

Except as required by law:

(a)
(b)

no person shall be recognised by the Company as holding any share on any trust; and

no person other than the Member shall be recognised by the Company as having any
right in a share.

Transfer of Registered Shares

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Title to shares listed on the TSE may be evidenced and transferred in a manner
consistent with the Applicable Public Company Rules (including through the
book-entry system of the TDCC).

All transfers of shares which are in certificated form may be effected by an
instrument of transfer in writing in any usual form or in any other form which the
Board may approve and shall be executed by or on behalf of the transferor and, if the
Board so requires, by or on behalf of the transferee. Without prejudice to the
foregoing, the Board may also resolve, either generally or in any particular case, upon
request by either the transferor or transferee, to accept mechanically executed
transfers.

The Board may refuse to recognise any instrument of transfer in respect of shares in
certificated form unless it is accompanied by the certificate in respect of the shares to
which it relates and by such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to
show the right of the transferor to make the transfer.

The joint holders of any share may transfer such share to one or more of such joint
holders, and the surviving holder or holders of any share previously held by them
jointly with a deceased Member may transfer any such share to the executors or
administrators of such deceased Member.

The Board may in its absolute discretion and without assigning any reason therefor
refuse to register the transfer of a share in certificated form in the event such
registration of transfer would (i) conflict with the Applicable Law; or (ii) conflict with
the Memorandum and/or these Articles. If the Board refuses to register a transfer of
any share, the Secretary shall, within three months after the date on which the transfer
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was lodged with the Company, send to the transferor and transferee notice of the
refusal.

10.  Transmission of Registered Shares

10.1

10.2

10.3

In the case of the death of a Member, the survivor or survivors where the deceased
Member was a joint holder, and the legal personal representatives of the deceased
Member where the deceased Member was a sole holder, shall be the only persons
recognised by the Company as having any title to the deceased Member's interest in
the shares. Nothing herein contained shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder
from any liability in respect of any share which had been jointly held by such
deceased Member with other persons. Subject to the provisions of Section 39 of the
Law, for the purpose of this Article, legal personal representative means the executor
or administrator of a deceased Member or such other person as the Board may, in its
absolute discretion, decide as being properly authorised to deal with the shares of a
deceased Member.

Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of
any Member may be registered as a Member upon such evidence as the Board may
deem sufficient or may elect to nominate some person to be registered as a transferee
of such share, and in such case the person becoming entitled shall execute in favour
of such nominee an instrument of transfer in writing in the form, or as near thereto as
circumstances admit, of the following:

Transfer by a Person Becoming Entitled on Death/Bankruptcy of a Member
* (the "Company")

I/We, having become entitled in consequence of the [death/bankruptcy] of [name and
address of deceased Member] to [number] share(s) standing in the Register of
Members of the Company in the name of the said [name of deceased/bankrupt
Member] instead of being registered myself/ourselves, elect to have [name of
transferee] (the "Transferee™) registered as a transferee of such share(s), and l/we do
hereby accordingly transfer the said share(s) to the Transferee to hold the same unto
the Transferee, his or her executors, administrators and assignees, subject to the
conditions on which the same were held at the time of the execution hereof; and the
Transferee does hereby agree to take the said share(s) subject to the same conditions.

DATED this [ ] day of [ ], 201] ]

Signed by: In the presence of:
Transferor Witness
Transferee Witness

On the presentation of the foregoing materials to the Board, accompanied by such
evidence as the Board may require to prove the title of the transferor, the transferee
shall be registered as a Member. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board shall, in
any case, have the same right to decline or suspend registration or refuse registration
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11.

10.4

as stipulated in Article 9.5 as it would have had in the case of a transfer of the share
by that Member before such Member's death or bankruptcy, as the case may be.

Where two or more persons are registered as joint holders of a share or shares, then in
the event of the death of any joint holder or holders the remaining joint holder or
holders shall be absolutely entitled to the said share or shares and the Company shall
recognise no claim in respect of the estate of any joint holder except in the case of the
last survivor of such joint holders.

ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Power to Alter Capital

111

11.2

11.3

11.4

Subject to the Law, the Company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution to
increase its authorized share capital by such amount as it thinks expedient.

Subject to the Law, the Company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution alter
the conditions of its Memorandum of Association to:

(@  consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger
amount than its existing shares in such manner as permitted by Applicable
Law; or

(b)  cancel shares which at the date of the passing of the resolution have not been
taken or agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amount of its share
capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled in such manner as permitted
by Applicable Law.

Subject to the Law and the Articles, the Company may from time to time by Special
Resolution:

(@  change its name;
(b)  alter or add to the Articles;

(c)  alter or add to the Memorandum with respect to any objects, powers or other
matters specified therein; or

(d)  reduce its share capital and any capital redemption reserve fund.

Subject to the Law, Article 11.5 and Article 11.6, the following actions by the
Company shall require the approval of the Members by a Supermajority Resolution,
provided that if the Applicable Public Company Rules permit the Company to only
require the approval of the Board or of the Members by an Ordinary Resolution for
the following actions, the Company is not required to obtain the approval of the
Members by a Supermajority Resolution:

(@)  effecting any capitalization of distributable Dividends and/or bonuses and/or
any other amount prescribed under Article 16 hereof;

(b)  effecting any Merger (except for any Merger which falls within the definition
of "merger" and/or "consolidation™ under the Law, which requires the approval
of the Company by Special Resolution only), Share Swap or Spin-off of the
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12.

11.5

Company;

(c)  entering into, amend, or terminate any Lease Contract, Management Contract
or Joint Operation Contract;

(d) the transferring of the whole or any essential part of the business or assets of
the Company; or

(e)  acquiring or assuming the whole business or assets of another person, which
has a material effect on the Company's operation.

Subject to the Law, the Company may be wound up voluntarily:

@ if the Company resolves by Ordinary Resolution that it be wound up
voluntarily because the Company is unable to pay its debts as they fall due; or

(b)  if the Company resolves by Special Resolution that it be wound up voluntarily
for reasons other than set out in Article 11.5(a) above.

11.6 For so long as the shares are listed on the TSE, if the Company proposes to undertake:

11.7

(@  amerger or consolidation which will result in the Company being dissolved;
(b)  asale, transfer or assignment of all of the Company's businesses and assets;
(c)  aShare Swap; or

(d)  a Spin-off,

which would result in the termination of the Company's listing on the TSE, and where
(in the case of (a) above) the surviving entity, (in the case of (b) above) the transferee,
(in the case of (c) above) the entity whose shares has been allotted or who pays cash
or uses its assets as the consideration in exchange for the Company's shares and, (in
the case of (d) above) the existing or newly incorporated spun-off company is not a
listed company on the TSE or Taipei Exchange, then in addition to any requirements
to be satisfied under the Law, such action shall be first approved at a general meeting
by a resolution passed by Members holding two-thirds or more of the votes of the
total number of issued shares of the Company.

Subject to the Law, the Company may, by Special Resolution, issue securities by way
of Private Placement within the territory of the ROC in accordance with Applicable
Public Company Rules; provided that, for issuance of straight corporate bonds by
way of Private Placement within the territory of the ROC, the Company may do so by
resolution of the Board in accordance with Applicable Public Company Rules.

Variation of Rights Attaching to Shares

If, at any time, the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached
to any class (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may;,
whether or not the Company is being wound-up, be varied with the sanction of a Special
Resolution passed at a general meeting of the holders of the shares of the class.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any modification or alteration in the Articles is prejudicial
to the preferential rights of any class of shares, such modification or alteration shall be
adopted by a Special Resolution and shall also be adopted by a Special Resolution passed at
a separate meeting of Members of that class of shares. The rights conferred upon the holders
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13.

of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwise
expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied
by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith. To any such meeting
all the provisions of the Articles relating to general meetings shall apply mutatis mutandis.

DIVIDENDS AND CAPITALISATION

Dividends

131

13.2

13.3

134

13.5

The Board may declare a Dividend to be paid to the Members in proportion to the
number of shares held by them, and such Dividend may be paid in cash, shares or,
subject to Article 13.2, wholly or partly in specie. No unpaid Dividend shall bear
interest as against the Company.

Subject to the provisions of Article 13.1 hereof and approval by Members by way of
Ordinary Resolution, the Directors may determine that a Dividend shall be paid
wholly or partly by the distribution of specific assets (which may consist of the shares
or securities of any other company) and may settle all questions concerning such
distribution, subject, however to obtaining the prior consent of any shareholder to
whom it is proposed to make a distribution in specie and an assurance on the
valuation of the assets for distribution from an ROC certified public accountant, prior
to the Directors fixing the value of the assets for distribution. The Directors may
make cash payments to some Members on the footing of the value so fixed in order to
adjust the rights of Members. Without limiting the foregoing generality, the Directors
may vest any such specific assets in trustees on such terms as the Directors think fit
and may issue fractional shares.

Subject to the Applicable Law, no Dividends or other distribution shall be paid except
out of profits of the Company, realised or unrealised, out of share premium account or
any reserve, fund or account as otherwise permitted by the Law. Except as
otherwise provided by the rights attached to any shares, all Dividends and other
distributions shall be paid according to the number of the shares that a Member holds.
If any share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for Dividend as from a
particular date, that share shall rank for Dividends accordingly.

With respect to the Dividend to be distributed at the end of each financial year,
subject to the Law and this Article and except as otherwise provided by the rights
attached to any shares, the Company may distribute profits after each financial year in
accordance with a proposal for profits distribution approved by, in the case of
Dividend to be paid in cash, a majority of the Directors at a meeting attended by
two-thirds or more of the total number of the Directors or, in the case of Article
11.4(a), Supermajority Resolution in the annual meeting. After the Board approves
the distribution of Dividend in cash, the Board shall report such distribution in the
next annual general meeting.

Upon the final settlement of the Company’s accounts, if there is “surplus profit” (as
defined below), the Company shall set aside zero point five per cent (0.5%) to twenty
per cent (20%) as compensation to employees ("Employees’ Compensations") and
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13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

Employees’ Compensations may be distributed to employees of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, who meet certain qualifications. The Company shall, from the surplus
profit, set aside no more than zero point five per cent (0.5%) thereof as remuneration
for the Directors ("Directors’ Remuneration™). The distribution proposals in
respect of Employees’ Compensation and Directors' Remuneration shall be approved
by a majority of the Directors at a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of the total
number of the Directors and submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for report.
However, if the Company has accumulated losses, the Company shall reserve an
amount thereof for making up the losses before proceeding with the abovementioned
distributions and allocation. The “surplus profit” referred to above means the net
profit before tax and for the avoidance of doubt, such amount is before any payment
of compensation to employees and remuneration for the Directors.

In determining the Company's dividend policy, the Board recognises that the
Company operates in a mature industry, and has stable profit streams and a sound
financial structure. In determining the amount, if any, of the Dividend or other
distribution it recommends to Members for approval in any financial year, the Board:

(@ may take into consideration the earnings of the Company, overall development,
financial planning, capital needs, industry outlook and future prospects of the
Company in the relevant financial year, so as to ensure the protection of
Members' rights and interests; and

(b)  shall set aside out of the profits of the Company for each financial year: (i) a
reserve for payment of tax for the relevant financial year; (ii) an amount to
offset losses incurred in previous years; (iii) ten per cent (10%) as a general
reserve (unless the general reserve reserved in the past years has reached the
total paid-up capital of the Company), and (iv) a special surplus reserve as
required by the applicable securities authority under the Applicable Public
Company Rules or a reserve as determined by the Board pursuant to Article
14.1.

Subject to compliance with the Law and after setting aside the amounts for
Employees’ Compensations and Directors’ Remuneration in accordance with Article
13.5 and such amounts as the Board deems fit in accordance with the distribution
policy set out in Article 13.6, the Board shall recommend to distribute no less than ten
per cent (10%) of the distributable amount as Dividend to the Members.

Dividends to the Members and the Employees’ Compensation may be distributed, in
the discretion of the Board, by way of cash or by way of applying such sum in paying
up in full unissued shares or a combination of both for allocation and distribution to
employees or the Members, provided that, in the case of a distribution to Members,
no less than fifty per cent (50%) of the total amount of such Dividend shall be paid in
cash. No unpaid Dividend and compensation shall bear interest as against the
Company.

The Board shall fix any date as the record date for determining the Members entitled
to receive any Dividend or other distribution.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

13.10 For the purpose of determining Members entitled to receive payment of any Dividend

or other distributions, the Directors may provide that the Register of Members be
closed for transfers for five (5) days before the relevant record date or such other
period consistent with the Applicable Public Company Rules subject to compliance
with the Law.

Capital Reserve and Power to Set Aside Profits

141

14.2

The Board may, before declaring a Dividend, set aside out of the surplus or profits of
the Company, such sum as it thinks proper as a reserve to be used to meet
contingencies or for meeting the deficiencies for implementing Dividend distribution
plans or for any other purpose to which those funds may be properly applied.
Pending application, such sums may be in the absolute discretion of the Directors
either be employed in the business of the Company or invested in such investment as
Directors may from time to time think fit, and need not be kept separate from other
assets of the Company. The Directors may also, without placing the same to reserve,
carry forward any profit which they decide not to distribute.

Subject to any direction from the Company in general meeting, the Directors may on
behalf of the Company exercise all the powers and options conferred on the Company
by the Law in regard to the Capital Reserve. Subject to compliance with the Law, the
Directors may on behalf of the Company set off accumulated losses against credits
standing in the Capital Reserve and make distributions out of the Capital Reserve.

Method of Payment

151

15.2

Any Dividend, interest, or other monies payable in cash in respect of the shares may
be paid by wire transfer to the Member’s designated account or by cheque or draft
sent through the post directed to the Member at such Member's address in the
Register of Members, or to such person and to such address as the holder may in
writing direct.

In the case of joint holders of shares, any Dividend, interest or other monies payable
in cash in respect of shares may be paid by cheque or draft sent through the post
directed to the address of the holder first named in the Register of Members, or to
such person and to such address as the holder may in writing direct. If two or more
persons are registered as joint holders of any shares any one can give an effectual
receipt for any Dividend paid in respect of such shares.

Capitalisation

Subject to the Law and Article 11.4(a), the Board may capitalise any sum for the time being
standing to the credit of the Capital Reserve or other reserve accounts or to the credit of the
profit and loss account or otherwise available for distribution by applying such sum in
paying up unissued shares to be allotted as fully paid bonus shares pro rata to the Members.

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Annual General Meetings

17.1

The Company shall hold a general meeting as its annual general meeting within six
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18.

17.2

months following the end of each fiscal year. The Board shall call all annual general
meetings.

The general meetings (including annual general meetings and extraordinary general
meetings) shall be held at such time and place as the Chairman or any two Directors
or any Director and the Secretary or the Board shall appoint provided that unless
otherwise provided by the Law, the general meetings shall be held in the ROC. If
the Board resolves to hold a general meeting outside the ROC, the Company shall
apply for the approval of the TSE thereof within two days after the Board adopts such
resolution. Where a general meeting is to be held outside the ROC, the Company
shall engage a professional stock affairs agent in the ROC to handle the
administration of such general meeting (including but not limited to the handling of
the voting of proxies submitted by Members).

Extraordinary General Meetings

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

185

18.6

18.7

General meetings other than annual general meetings shall be called extraordinary
general meetings.

The Board may convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company whenever
in their judgment such a meeting is necessary or is desirable, and the Board shall on a
Member’s requisition as defined in Article 18.3 forthwith proceed to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

A Member's requisition set forth in Article 18.2 is a requisition of one or more
Members of the Company holding in the aggregate at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than three per cent (3%) of the total number of issued shares of the
Company which as at that date have been held by such Member(s) for at least one
year.

The Member's requisition must state in writing the matters to be discussed at the
extraordinary general meeting and the reason therefor and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the Registered Office and the Company's stock affairs
agent located in the ROC, and may consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within fifteen (15) days from the date of the deposit of the
Member's requisition dispatch the notice of an extraordinary general meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene an extraordinary general meeting, provided
that if the extraordinary general meeting will be held outside the ROC, an application
shall be submitted by such requisitionists to the TSE for its prior approval.

Any one or more Member(s) may summon an extraordinary general meeting, provided
that such Member or Members shall hold more than fifty per cent (50%) of the total
issued Shares of the Company for a continuous period of no less than three (3) months.
The number of the Shares held by a Member and the period during which a Member
holds such Shares, shall be calculated and determined based on the Register of
Members as of the first day of the period that the Register of Members shall be closed
for transfers.

If the Board does not or is unable to convene a general meeting (including the annual
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19.

general meeting) or it is for the Company's benefit, the Independent Director may
convene a general meeting when he/she in his/her absolute discretion deems
necessary.

Notice

19.1 At least thirty days' notice of an annual general meeting shall be given to each
Member entitled to attend and vote thereat, stating the date, place and time at which
the meeting is to be held and the general nature of business to be conducted at the
meeting.

19.2 At least fifteen days' notice of an extraordinary general meeting shall be given to each
Member entitled to attend and vote thereat, stating the date, place and time at which
the meeting is to be held and the general nature of the business to be considered at the
meeting.

19.3 The Board shall fix a record date for determining the Members entitled to receive
notice of and to vote at any general meeting of the Company in accordance with
Applicable Public Company Rules and close its Register of Members accordingly in
accordance with Applicable Public Company Rules.

19.4 Subject to Article 22.4, the accidental omission to give notice of a general meeting to,
or the non-receipt of a notice of a general meeting by, any person entitled to receive
notice shall not invalidate the proceedings at that meeting.

19.5 For so long as the shares are listed on the TSE, the Company shall announce to the
public the notice of a general meeting, the proxy instrument, agendas and materials
relating to the matters to be reported and discussed in the general meetings, including
but not limited to, election or discharge of Directors, in accordance with Articles 19.1
and Article 19.2 hereof, and shall transmit the same via the Market Observation Post
System in accordance with Applicable Public Company Rules. If the voting power
of a Member at a general meeting shall be exercised by way of a written ballot, the
Company shall also send the written document for the Member to exercise his voting
power together with the above mentioned materials in accordance with Articles 19.1
and 19.2. The Directors shall prepare a meeting handbook of the relevant general
meeting and supplemental materials, which will be sent to or made available to all
Members and shall be transmitted to the Market Observation Post System in a manner
consistent with the Applicable Public Company Rules twenty-one (21) days prior to
the general meetings or, in the case of extraordinary general meetings, fifteen (15)
days prior to such meeting.

19.6 The following matters shall be stated in the notice of a general meeting, with a
summary of the major content to be discussed, and shall not be proposed as an
extemporary motion:

(@)  election or discharge of Directors,
(b)  alteration of the Memorandum or Articles,
(c)  capital deduction,

(d) application to terminate the public offering of the Shares,
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19.7

19.8

19.9

(e) (i) dissolution, Merger, Share Swap or Spin-off, (ii) entering into, amending,
or terminating any Lease Contract, Management Contract or Joint Operation
Contract, (iii) transfer of the whole or any essential part of the business or
assets of the Company, and (iv) acquisition or assumption of the whole of the
business or assets of another person, which has a material effect on the
operations of the Company,

) ratification of an action by Director(s) who engage(s) in business for himself
or on behalf of another person that is within the scope of the Company's
business,

(g)  distribution of the whole or part of the surplus profit of the Company in the
form of new shares, capitalization of Capital Reserve and any other amount in
accordance with Article 16 or distributions of cash out of the general reserve
accumulated in accordance with Article 13.5 (b) or Capital Reserve to its
Members, and

(n)  Private Placement of any equity-related securities to be issued by the
Company.

The major content of the above matters can be announced at the website designated
by Taiwan securities authority or by the Company, and the Company shall specify the
link to the website in the notice of the relevant general meeting.

The Board shall keep the Memorandum and Articles, minutes of general meetings,
financial statements, the Register of Members, and the counterfoil of any corporate
bonds issued by the Company at the Registered Office (if applicable) and the
Company's stock affairs agent located in the ROC. Members may request, from
time to time, by submitting document(s) evidencing his interests involved and
indicating the designated scope of the inspection, access to inspect, review or make
copies of the foregoing documents. If the relevant documents are kept by the
Company's stock affairs agent, upon the request of such Member, the Company shall
order the Company's stock affairs agent to provide such Member with the requested
documents.

The Company shall make available all the statements and records prepared by the
Board and the report prepared by the Audit Committee which will be submitted to the
Members at the annual general meeting at the Registered Office (if applicable) and its
stock affairs agent located in the ROC ten (10) days prior to such annual general
meeting in accordance with Applicable Public Company Rules. Members may
inspect and review the foregoing documents from time to time and may be
accompanied by their lawyers or certified public accountants for the purpose of such
inspection and review.

If the general meeting is convened by the Board and other person entitled to convene
a general meeting in accordance with these Articles or any Applicable Law, the Board
and such person may request the Company or the Company's stock affairs agent to
provide the Register of Members.
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20.

Giving Notice

20.1

20.2

Any Notice or document, whether or not to be given or issued under these Articles
from the Company to a Member, shall be in writing or by cable, telex or facsimile
transmission message or other form of electronic transmission or communication, and
any such Notice and document may be served or delivered by the Company on or to
any Member either personally or by sending it through the post in a prepaid envelope
addressed to such Member at his registered address as appearing in the Register of
Members or at any other address supplied by him to the Company for the purpose or,
as the case may be, by transmitting it to any such address or transmitting it to any
telex or facsimile transmission number or electronic number or address or website
supplied by him to the Company for the giving of Notice to him or which the person
transmitting the Notice reasonably and bona fide believes at the relevant time will
result in the Notice being duly received by the Member or to the extent permitted by
Applicable Law, may also be served by advertisement in appropriate newspapers. In
the case of joint holders of a share, all notices shall be given to that one of the joint
holders whose name stands first in the Register of Members and notice so given shall
be deemed a sufficient service on or delivery to all the joint holders.

Any Notice or other document:

(@)  if served or delivered by post, shall where appropriate be sent by airmail and
shall be deemed to have been served or delivered on the day following that on
which the envelope containing the same, properly prepaid and addressed, is
put into the post; in proving such service; or delivery it shall be sufficient to
prove that the envelope or wrapper containing the notice or document was
properly addressed and put into the post and a certificate in writing signed by
the secretary or other officer of the Company or other person appointed by the
Board that the envelope or wrapper containing the notice or other document
was so addressed and put into the post shall be conclusive evidence thereof;

(b)  if sent by electronic communication, shall be deemed to be given on the day
on which it is transmitted from the server of the Company or its agent;

(c) if served or delivered in any other manner contemplated by these Articles,
shall be deemed to have been served or delivered at the time of personal
service or delivery or, as the case may be, at the time of the relevant dispatch
or transmission; and in proving such service or delivery a certificate in writing
signed by the secretary or other officer of the Company or other person
appointed by the Board as to the act and time of such service, delivery,
dispatch or transmission shall be conclusive evidence thereof; and

(d) may be given to a Member either in the English language or the Chinese
language, subject to due compliance with all Applicable Law, rules and
regulations.

This Article shall apply mutatis mutandis to the service of any document by a
Member on the Company under these Articles.
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21.

22

Postponement of General Meeting

The Board may postpone any general meeting called in accordance with the provisions of
these Articles provided that notice of postponement is given to each Member before the time
for such meeting. A notice stating the date, time and place for the postponed meeting shall be
given to each Member in accordance with the provisions of these Articles.

Quorum and Proceedings at General Meetings

22.1

22.2

22.3

22.4

22.5

22.6

No resolutions shall be adopted unless a quorum is present. Unless otherwise
provided for in the Articles, Members present in person or by proxy or in the case of a
corporate Member, by corporate representative, representing more than one-half of
the total issued shares of the Company entitled to vote, shall constitute a quorum for
any general meeting.

The Board shall submit business reports, financial statements and proposals for
distribution of profits or allocation of losses prepared by it for the purposes of annual
general meetings of the Company for ratification by the Members in a manner
consistent with the Applicable Public Company Rules. After ratification by the
Members at the general meeting, the Board shall distribute copies of or announce to
the public the ratified financial statements and the Company's resolutions on
distribution of profits or allocation of losses, to each Member or otherwise make the
same available to the Members in accordance with the Applicable Public Company
Rules.

Unless otherwise provided in the Articles, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting
shall be decided on a poll; provided that the resolution shall be deemed unanimously
adopted and have the same effect as a resolution received on a poll after the chairman
of the meeting inquires all attending Members' opinion and receives no objections
thereto. No resolution put to the vote at the meeting shall be decided by a show of
hands.

Nothing in these Articles shall prevent any Member from initiating proceedings in a
court of competent jurisdiction for an appropriate remedy in connection with the
convening of any general meeting or the passage of any resolution in violation of
applicable laws or regulations or the Articles within 30 days after passing of such
resolution. The Taiwan Taipei District Court, ROC, may be the court of the first
instance for adjudicating any disputes arising out of the foregoing.

Unless otherwise expressly required by the Law, the Memorandum or the Articles,
any matter which has been presented for resolution, approval, confirmation or
adoption by the Members at any general meeting may be passed by an Ordinary
Resolution.

Member(s) holding one per cent (1%) or more of the Company's total issued shares
immediately prior to the relevant book close period, during which the Company
closed its Register of Members, may propose to the Company in writing or any
electronic means designated by the Company one matter for discussion at an annual
general meeting. The Company shall give a public notice in such manner as
permitted by Applicable Law at such time deemed appropriate by the Board
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23.

24,

specifying the place and a period of not less than ten (10) days for Members to submit
proposals. The Board shall include the proposal in the agenda of the annual general
meeting unless (a) the proposing Member(s) holds less than one per cent of the
Company's total issued shares, (b) the matter of such proposal may not be resolved by
a general meeting or the proposal exceeds 300 Chinese words; (c) the proposing
Member(s) has proposed more than one proposal; or (d) the proposal is submitted to
the Company outside the period fixed and announced by the Company for accepting
Member(s)' proposal(s). If the purpose of the proposal is to urge the Company to
promote public interests or fulfil its social responsibilities, the Board may accept such
proposal to be discussed in general meeting.

Chairman to Preside

Unless otherwise agreed by a majority of those attending and entitled to vote thereat, the
Chairman, shall act as chairman at all meetings of the Members at which such person is
present. In his absence a chairman shall be appointed or elected in accordance with the
Applicable Public Company Rules.

Voting on Resolutions

24.1

24.2

24.3

24.4

Subject to any rights, privileges or restrictions attached to any share, every Member
who (being an individual) is present in person or by proxy or (in the case of a
corporation or other non-natural person) by duly authorized corporate representative(s)
or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of which he is the holder. A Member
who holds shares for benefit of others, need not use all his votes or cast all the votes
he holds in the same way as he uses his votes in respect of shares he holds for himself.
The qualifications, scope, methods of exercise, operating procedures and other
matters for compliance with respect to exercising voting power separately shall
comply with the Applicable Public Company Rules.

No person shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting or at any separate meeting
of the holders of a class of shares unless he is registered as a Member on the record
date for such meeting.

\otes may be cast either in person or by proxy. A Member may appoint another
person as his proxy by specifying the scope of appointment in the proxy instrument
prepared by the Company to attend and vote at a general meeting, provided that a
Member may appoint only one proxy under one instrument to attend and vote at such
meeting.

The Board may determine that the voting power of a Member at a general meeting
may be exercised by way of a written ballot or by way of electronic transmission;
provided, however, that if a general meeting is to be held outside the ROC or pursuant
to the Applicable Public Company Rules, the Company is obligated to provide the
Members with a method for exercising their voting power by way of a written ballot
or electronic transmission. The method for exercising such voting power shall be
described in the general meeting notice to be given to the Members if the voting
power may be exercised by way of a written ballot or electronic transmission. Any
Member who intends to exercise his voting power by way of a written ballot or by
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24.5

24.6

way of electronic transmission shall serve the Company with his voting decision at
least two (2) days prior to the date of such general meeting. Where more than one
voting decision are received from the same Member by the Company, the first voting
decision shall prevail, unless an explicit written statement is made by the relevant
Member to revoke the previous voting decision in the later-received voting decision.
A Member who exercises his voting power at a general meeting by way of a written
ballot or by electronic transmission shall be deemed to have appointed the chairman
of the general meeting as his proxy to vote his shares at the general meeting only in
the manner directed by his written instrument or electronic document. The chairman
of the general meeting as proxy shall not have the power to exercise the voting rights
of such Members with respect to any matters not referred to or indicated in the
written or electronic document and/or any amendment to resolution(s) proposed at the
said general meeting. For the purpose of clarification, such Members voting in such
manner shall be deemed to have waived their voting rights with respect to any
extemporary matters or amendment to resolution(s) proposed at the general meeting.

In the event any Member who intended to exercise his voting power by way of a
written ballot or electronic transmission and has served his voting decision on the
Company pursuant to Article 24.4 hereof later intends to attend the general meetings
in person, he shall, at least two (2) days prior to the date of such general meeting,
serve the Company with a separate notice revoking his previous voting decision.
Such separate notice shall be sent to the Company in the same manner (e.g., by
courier, registered mail or electronic transmission, as applicable) as the previous
voting decision under Article 24.4 was given to the Company. \otes by way of a
written ballot or electronic transmission shall remain valid if the relevant Member
fails to revoke his voting decision before the prescribed time.

A Member who has served the Company with his voting decision in accordance with
Article 24.4 for the purpose of exercising his voting power by way of a written ballot
or by way of electronic transmission may appoint a person as his proxy to attend the
meeting in accordance with these Atrticles, in which case the vote cast by such proxy
shall be deemed to have revoked his previous voting decision served on the Company
and the Company shall only count the vote(s) cast by such expressly appointed proxy
at the meeting.

25. Proxies

25.1

25.2

The instrument of proxy shall be in the form approved by the Board from time to time
and be expressed to be for a particular meeting only. The form of proxy shall
include at least the following information: (a) instructions on how to complete such
proxy, (b) the matters to be voted upon pursuant to such proxy, and (c) basic
identification information relating to the relevant Member, proxy and the solicitor (if
any). The form of proxy shall be provided to the Members together with the
relevant notice for the relevant general meeting, and such notice and proxy materials
shall be distributed to all Members on the same day.

An instrument of proxy shall be in writing, be executed under the hand of the
appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing, or, if the appointor is a
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26.

27.

25.3

25.4

25.5

corporation or other non-natural person, under the hand of an officer or attorney duly
authorised for that purpose. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

Subject to the Applicable Public Company Rules, except for an ROC trust enterprise
or stock affair agents approved pursuant to Applicable Public Company Rules, save
with respect to the Chairman being deemed appointed as proxy under Article 24.4, in
the event a person acts as the proxy for two or more Members, the total number of
issued and voting shares entitled to be voted as represented by such proxy shall be no
more than three per cent (3%) of the total number of issued and voting shares of the
Company immediately prior to the relevant book closed period, during which the
Company close its Register of Member; any vote in respect of the portion in excess of
such three per cent (3%) threshold shall not be counted.

In the event that a Member exercises his voting power by way of a written ballot or
electronic transmission and has also authorised a proxy to attend a general meeting,
then the voting power exercised by the proxy at the general meeting shall prevail. In
the event that any Member who has authorised a proxy to attend a general meeting
later intends to attend the general meeting in person or to exercise his voting power
by way of a written ballot or electronic transmission, he shall, at least two (2) days
prior to the date of such general meeting, serve the Company with a separate written
notice revoking his previous appointment of the proxy. Votes by way of proxy shall
remain valid if the relevant Member fails to revoke his appointment of such proxy
before the prescribed time.

The instrument of proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office or the office of
the Company's stock affairs agent in the ROC or at such other place as is specified for
that purpose in the notice convening the meeting, or in any instrument of proxy sent
out by the Company not less than five (5) days before the time for holding the
meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes
to vote, save with respect to the Chairman being deemed appointed as proxy under
Article 24.4. Where more than one instrument to vote are received from the same
Member by the Company, the first instrument received shall prevail, unless an
explicit written statement is made by the relevant Member to revoke the previous
proxy in the later-received instrument.

Proxy Solicitation

For so long as the shares are listed on the TSE, the use and solicitation of proxies shall be in

compliance with the Applicable Public Company Rules, including but not limited to

"Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of
Public Companies.”

Dissenting Member’s Appraisal Right

27.1

Subject to compliance with the Law, in the event any of the following resolutions is
passed at general meetings, any Member who has abstained from voting in respect of
such matter and expressed his dissent therefor, in writing or verbally (with a record to
that effect in the minutes of the meeting) before or during the meeting, may request
the Company to purchase all of his shares at the then prevailing fair price:
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(@  the Company proposes to enter into, amend, or terminate any Lease Contract,
Management Contract or Joint Operation Contract;

(b)  the Company transfers the whole or an essential part of its business or assets,
provided that, the foregoing does not apply where such transfer is pursuant to
the dissolution of the Company;

(c)  the Company acquires or assumes the whole business or assets of another
person, which has a material effect on the operation of the Company;

(d) the Company proposes to undertake a Spin-off, Merger or Share Swap; or

(e) the Company generally assumes all the assets and liabilities of another person
or generally assigns all its assets and liabilities to another person.

27.2  Without prejudice to the Law, any Member exercising his rights in accordance with
Article 27.1 (the "Dissenting Member™) shall, within twenty (20) days from the date

of the resolution passed at the general meeting, give his written notice of objection
stating the repurchase price proposed by him. If the Company and the Dissenting
Member agree on a price at which the Company will purchase the Dissenting
Member's Shares, the Company shall make the payment within ninety (90) days from
the date of the resolution passed at the general meeting. If, within ninety (90) days
from the date of the resolution passed at the general meeting, the Company and any
Dissenting Member fail to agree on a price at which the Company will purchase the
Dissenting Member's Shares, the Company shall pay the fair price it deems fit to such
Dissenting Member within ninety (90) days from the date of the resolution passed at
the general meeting. If the Company fails to pay the fair price it deems fit to such
Dissenting Member within the ninety-day period, the Company shall be deemed to
agree on the repurchase price proposed by such Dissenting Member.

27.3  Without prejudice to the Law, if, within sixty (60) days from the date of the resolution
passed at the general meeting, the Company and any Dissenting Member fail to agree
on a price at which the Company will purchase such Dissenting Member's Shares,
then, within thirty (30) days immediately following the date of the expiry of such
sixty-day period, the Company shall file a petition with the court against all the
Dissenting Members which have not agreed at the purchase price by the Company for
a determination of the fair price of all the Shares held by such Dissenting
Shareholders. The Taiwan Taipei District Court, ROC, may be the court of the first
instance for this matter.

27.4 Notwithstanding the above provisions under this Article 27, nothing under this Article
shall restrict or prohibit a Member from exercising his right under section 238 of the
Law to payment of the fair value of his shares upon dissenting from a merger or
consolidation.

28.  Shares that May Not be Voted
28.1 Shares held:
(@ by the Company itself;
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29.

30.

31.

28.2

28.3

(b) by any entity in which the Company owns, legally or beneficially, more than
fifty per cent (50%) of its total issued and voting share or share capital; or

(c) by any entity in which the Company, together with (i) the holding company of
the Company and/or (ii) any Subsidiary of (a) the holding company of the
Company or (b) the Company owns, legally or beneficially, directly or
indirectly, more than fifty per cent (50%) of its issued and voting share or
share capital;

shall not carry any voting rights nor be counted in the total number of issued shares at
any given time.

A Member who has a personal interest in any motion discussed at a general meeting,
which interest may be in conflict with and impair those of the Company, shall abstain
from voting such Member’s shares in regard to such motion and such shares shall not
be counted in determining the number of votes of the Members present at the said
meeting. However, such shares may be counted in determining the number of shares
of the Members present at such general meeting for the purposes of determining the
quorum. The aforementioned Member shall also not vote on behalf of any other
Member.

If the number of shares pledged by a Director at any time amounts to more than fifty
per cent (50%) of the total shares held by such Director at the time of his latest
appointment, such pledged shares exceeding fifty per cent (50%) of the total shares
held by such Director at the time of his latest appointment, shall not carry any voting
rights and such above-threshold shares shall not be counted in determining the
number of votes of the Members present at a general meeting but shall be counted
towards the quorum of the general meeting.

Voting by Joint Holders of Shares

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote (whether in person or
by proxy) shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, and for
this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
Register of Members.

Representation of Corporate Member

30.1

30.2

A corporation or non-natural person which is a Member may, by written instrument,
authorise such person or persons as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any
meeting of the Members and any person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the
same powers on behalf of the corporation or such non-natural person which such
person represents as that corporation or non-natural person could exercise if it were
an individual Member, and that Member shall be deemed to be present in person at
any such meeting attended by its authorised representative or representatives.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the chairman of the meeting may accept such
assurances as he thinks fit as to the right of any person to attend and vote at general
meetings on behalf of a corporation or non-natural person which is a Member.

Adjournment of General Meeting
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32.

33.

The chairman of a general meeting may, with the consent of a majority in number of the
Members present at any general meeting at which a quorum is present, and shall if so
directed, adjourn the meeting. Unless the meeting is adjourned to a specific date, place and
time announced at the meeting being adjourned, a notice stating the date, place and time for
the resumption of the adjourned meeting shall be given to each Member entitled to attend
and vote thereat in accordance with the provisions of these Articles.

Directors Attendance at General Meetings

The Directors of the Company shall be entitled to receive notice of, attend and be heard at
any general meeting.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Number and Term of Office of Directors

33.1 There shall be a Board consisting of no less than five (5) and no more than nine (9)
persons. The term of office for each Director shall not exceed a period of three (3)
years. Directors may be eligible for re-election. The Company may from time to
time by Special Resolution increase or reduce the number of Directors, subject to the
foregoing and the Applicable Law.

33.2 Unless otherwise approved by the TSE, the number of Directors having a spousal
relationship or familial relationship within the second degree of kinship with any
other Directors shall be less than half of the total number of Directors.

33.3 In the event that the Company convenes a general meeting for the election of
Directors and any of the Directors elected does not meet the requirements provided in
Article 33.2 hereof, the non-qualifying Director(s) who was elected with the fewest
number of votes shall be deemed not to have been elected, to the extent necessary to
meet the requirements provided for in Article 33.2 hereof. Any person who has
already served as a Director but is in violation of the aforementioned requirements
shall be automatically discharged from his office effective from such violation.

33.4 Unless otherwise permitted under the Applicable Public Company Rules, there shall
be at least three (3) Independent Directors. To the extent required by the Applicable
Public Company Rules, at least one of the Independent Directors shall be domiciled
in the ROC and at least one of them shall have accounting or financial expertise.

33.5 The Directors (including Independent Directors and non-independent Directors) shall
be nominated by adopting the candidate nomination system specified in the Applicable
Public Company Rules.

33.6 Independent Directors shall have professional knowledge and shall maintain
independence within the scope of their directorial duties, and shall not have any direct
or indirect interests in the Company. The professional qualifications, restrictions on
shareholdings and concurrent positions, and assessment of independence with respect
to Independent Directors shall be consistent with the Applicable Public Company
Rules.

33.7 Unless provided otherwise in these Articles, the qualifications, composition,
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appointment, removal, exercise of power in performing duties and other matters with
respect to the Directors, Independent Directors, Compensation Committee and Audit
Committee, shall comply with the provisions under ROC Securities and Exchange
Act and the regulations issued pursuant to the ROC Securities and Exchange Act
applicable to the Company.

34. Election of Directors

34.1

34.2

34.3

34.4

The Company may at a general meeting elect any person to be a Director, which vote
shall be calculated in accordance with Article 34.2 below. Members present in
person or by proxy, representing more than one-half of the total issued shares shall
constitute a quorum for any general meeting to elect one or more Directors.

The election of Independent Directors and non-independent Directors shall be held
together and the Director(s) shall be elected by Members upon a poll vote by way of
cumulative voting (the manner of voting described in this Article to be referred to as
“Cumulative Voting”) in the following manner:

(1) the numbers of votes attached to each voting share held by a Member shall be
cumulative and correspond to the number of Directors (including the
Independent Directors and non-independent Directors) nominated for
appointment at the general meeting;

(i)  the Member(s) may vote all or part of their cumulated votes in respect of one
or more Independent Director or non-independent Director candidates;

(iii)  such number of Director candidates receiving the highest number of votes in
the same category of Directors to be elected shall be appointed; and

(iv)  where two or more Director candidates receive the same number of votes and
as a result the total number of new Directors intended to be appointed is
exceeded, there shall be a draw by such Director candidates receiving the same
number of votes to determine who shall be appointed; the chairman of the
meeting shall draw for a Director nominated for appointment who is not
present at the general meeting.

If the number of Independent Directors is less than three (3) persons due to the
resignation or removal of such Independent Directors for any reason, the Company
shall hold an election of Independent Directors at the next following general meeting.
If all of the Independent Directors are resigned or removed, the Board shall hold,
within sixty (60) days from the date of resignation or removal of last Independent
Director, a general meeting to elect succeeding Independent Directors to fill the
vacancies.

If the number of Directors is less than five (5) persons due to the vacancy of
Director(s) for any reason, the Company shall call an election of Director(s) at the
next following general meeting to fill the vacancies. When the number of vacancies
in the Board of the Company equals to one third of the total number of Directors
elected, the Board shall hold, within sixty (60) days from the date of the occurrence
of vacancies, a general meeting to elect succeeding Directors to fill the vacancies.
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34.5 Any corporation (or other legal entity) which is a Member shall be entitled to appoint
such person or persons as its representative to be elected as a Director (the
"Appointed Representative™). The election of an Appointed Representative as a
Director is subject to the approval of Members in accordance with the provisions of
this Article 34.

34.6  Where the Appointed Representative has been elected as a Director of the Company,
the corporation (or other legal entity) which is a Member which has appointed the
Appointed Representative to be elected as a Director, may at any time, serve notice
on the Company giving notice to replace the Appointed Representative with another
person. Such replacement of the Appointed Representative as a Director (the
"Replacement™) shall take effect from the date specified in the notice or in the
absence of such date, from the date on which the notice was served on the Company,
and will not require any shareholders' approval. Accordingly, Articles 34.1, 34.2 and
34.5 do not apply in respect of the Replacement.

35. Removal of Directors

35.1 The Company may from time to time by Supermajority Resolution remove any
Director from office, whether or not appointing another in his stead. Prior to the
expiration of the term of office of the current Directors, the Members may at a
general meeting re-elect all Directors, whose vote shall be calculated in accordance
with Article 34.2 above. If no resolution is passed to approve that the existing
Director(s) who is/are not re-elected at the general meeting shall remain in office until
expiry of his/her original term of office, such non-re-eleted Directors shall vacate
their office with effect from the date the other Directors elected or re-elected at the
same general meeting commence their office. Members present in person or by
proxy, representing more than one-half of the total issued shares shall constitute a
quorum for any general meeting to re-elect all Directors. If the term of office of all
Directors expires at the same time and no general meeting was held before such
expiry for re-election, their term of office shall continue and be extended to such time
when new Directors are elected or re-elected in the next general meeting and they
commence their office.

35.2 In case a Director has, in the course of performing his duties, committed any act
resulting in material damages to the Company or is in serious violation of applicable
laws, regulations and/or these Articles, but has not been removed by a Supermajority
Resolution, the Member(s) holding three per cent (3%) or more of the total number of
issued shares of the Company may, within thirty (30) days after such general meeting,
to the extent permissible under Applicable Law, institute a lawsuit to remove such
Director. The Taiwan Taipei District Court, ROC, may be the court of the first
instance for this matter.

36.  Vacation of Office of Director
36.1 The office of Director shall be vacated if the Director:
@ is removed from office pursuant to these Articles;

(b) is an Appointed Representative and the corporation (or other legal entity)
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which appointed such Appointed Representative, serves notice on the
Company giving notice to remove such Appointed Representative from the
office of Director, such removal shall take effect from the date specified in the
notice or in the absence of such date, from the date on which the notice was
served on the Company;

(c) dies;

(d)  has been adjudicated bankrupt or the court has declared a liquidation process
in connection with such Director, and such Director has not been reinstated to
his rights and privileges;

(e) isautomatically discharged from his office in accordance with Article 33.3;
) resigns his office by notice in writing to the Company;

(@)  an order is made by any competent court or official on the grounds that he has
no legal capacity, or his legal capacity is restricted according to Applicable
Law;

(h)  has been adjudicated of the commencement of assistantship (as defined under
the Taiwan Civil Code) or similar declaration and such
assistantship/declaration has not been revoked yet;

(1) has committed an offence as specified in the ROC statute of prevention of
organizational crimes and subsequently has been adjudicated guilty by a final
judgment, and (A) has not started serving the sentence, (B) has not completed
serving the sentence, (C) the time elapsed after completion of serving the
sentence or expiration of the probation is less than five years, or (D) was
pardoned for less than five years;

a) has committed an offence involving fraud, breach of trust or misappropriation
and subsequently has been punished with imprisonment for a term of more
than one year by a final judgement, and (A) has not started serving the
sentence, (B) has not completed serving the sentence, (C) the time elapsed
after completion of serving the sentence or expiration of the probation is less
than two years, or (D) was pardoned for less than two years;

(k)  has been adjudicated guilty by a final judgment for committing offenses under
the Taiwan Anti-Corruption Act, and (A) has not started serving the sentence,
(B) has not completed serving the sentence, (C) the time elapsed after
completion of serving the sentence or expiration of the probation is less than
two years, or (D) was pardoned for less than two years;

U] having been dishonored for unlawful use of credit instruments, and the term of
such sanction has not expired yet;

(m) is automatically removed in accordance with Article 36.2; or
(n)  ceases to be a Director in accordance with Article 36.3.

In the event that the foregoing events described in clauses (d), (9), (h), (i), (j), (k) or (I)
has occurred in relation to a candidate for election of Director, such person shall be
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37.

38.

36.2

36.3

disqualified from being elected as a Director.

In case a Director (other than an Independent Director) that has, during the term of
office as a Director (other than an Independent Director), transferred more than one
half of the Company's shares being held by him at the time he is elected, he shall, ipso
facto, be removed automatically from the position of Director with immediate effect
and no shareholders' approval shall be required.

If any Director (other than an Independent Director) has, after having been elected
and before his inauguration of the office of Director, transferred more than one half of
the Company's shares being held by him at the time of his election as a Director, then
he shall immediately cease to be a Director and no shareholders' approval shall be
required. If any Director has, after having been elected as a Director, transferred
more than one half of the Company's shares being held by him within the share
transfer prohibition period prior to a shareholders' meeting according to the
Applicable Public Company Rules, then he shall immediately cease to be a Director
and no shareholders' approval shall be required.

Compensation of Directors

37.1

37.2

37.3

The Board shall, in accordance with the Applicable Public Company Rules, establish
a Compensation Committee comprised of at least three members, one of whom shall
be an Independent Director. The professional qualifications of the members of the
Compensation Committee, the responsibilities, powers and other related matters of
the Compensation Committee shall comply with the Applicable Public Company
Rules. Upon the establishment of the Compensation Committee, the Board shall, by a
resolution, adopt a charter for the Compensation Committee the provisions of which
shall be consistent with the Applicable Public Company Rules.

The compensation referred in the preceding Article shall include the compensation,
stock option and other incentive payments of Directors and managers of the
Company.

The compensation of the Directors may be decided by the Board by reference to
recommendation made by the Compensation Committee (if established), the standard
generally adopted by other enterprises in the same industry, and shall be paid in cash
only. The Directors may also be paid all travel, hotel and other expenses properly
incurred by them in attending and returning from the meetings of the Board, any
committee appointed by the Board, general meetings of the Company, or in
connection with the business of the Company or their duties as Directors generally.
A Director is also entitled to distribution of profits of the Company if permitted by the
Law, the Applicable Public Company Rules, the service agreement or other similar
contract that he/she has entered into with the Company.

Defect in Election of Director

All acts done in good faith by the Board or by a committee of the Board or by any person
acting as a Director shall, notwithstanding that it be afterwards discovered that there was
some defect in the election of any Director, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be
as valid as if every such person had been duly elected and was qualified to be a Director.
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39.

40.

Directors to Manage Business

The business of the Company shall be managed and conducted by the Board. In managing
the business of the Company, the Board may exercise all such powers of the Company as are
not, by the Law or by these Articles, required to be exercised by the Company in general
meeting subject, nevertheless, to these Articles, the provisions of the Law, and to such
directions as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting.

Powers of the Board of Directors

Without limiting the generality of Article 39, the Board may subject to Article 11.4:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

(9)

(h)

appoint, suspend, or remove any manager, secretary, clerk, agent or employee of the
Company and may fix their compensation and determine their duties;

exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge
or otherwise grant a security interest in its undertaking, property and uncalled capital,
or any part thereof, and may issue debentures, debenture stock and other securities
whether outright or as security for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company or
any third party;

appoint one or more Directors to the office of managing director or chief executive
officer of the Company, who shall, subject to the control of the Board, supervise and
administer all of the general business and affairs of the Company;

appoint a person to act as manager of the Company's day-to-day business and may
entrust to and confer upon such manager such powers and duties as it deems
appropriate for the transaction or conduct of such business;

by power of attorney, appoint any company, firm, person or body of persons, whether
nominated directly or indirectly by the Board, to be an attorney of the Company for
such purposes and with such powers, authorities and discretions (not exceeding those
vested in or exercisable by the Board) and for such period and subject to such
conditions as it may think fit and any such power of attorney may contain such
provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with any such
attorney as the Board may think fit and may also authorise any such attorney to
sub-delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions so vested in the
attorney. Such attorney may, if so authorised, execute any deed or instrument in any
manner permitted by the Law;

procure that the Company pays all expenses incurred in promoting and incorporating
the Company;

delegate any of its powers (including the power to sub-delegate) to a committee of
one or more persons appointed by the Board and every such committee shall conform
to such directions as the Board shall impose on them. Subject to any directions or
regulations made by the Directors for this purpose, the meetings and proceedings of
any such committee shall be governed by the provisions of these Articles regulating
the meetings and proceedings of the Board,

delegate any of its powers (including the power to sub-delegate) to any person on
such terms and in such manner as the Board sees fit;
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41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

(1) present any petition and make any application in connection with the liquidation or
reorganisation of the Company;

() in connection with the issue of any share, pay such commission and brokerage as may
be permitted by law; and

(k)  authorise any company, firm, person or body of persons to act on behalf of the
Company for any specific purpose and in connection therewith to execute any
agreement, document or instrument on behalf of the Company.

Register of Directors and Officers

41.1 The Board shall cause to be kept in one or more books at the Registered Office a
Register of Directors and Officers in accordance with the Law and shall enter therein
the following particulars with respect to each Director and Officer:

(@  first name and surname; and
(b)  address.

41.2 The Board shall, within the period of thirty days from the occurrence of:-
(@  any change among its Directors and Officers; or

(b) any change in the particulars contained in the Register of Directors and
Officers,

cause to be entered on the Register of Directors and Officers the particulars of such
change and the date on which such change occurred, and shall notify the Registrar of
Companies in accordance with the Law.

Officers

The Officers shall consist of a Secretary and such additional Officers as the Board may
determine all of whom shall be deemed to be Officers for the purposes of these Articles.

Appointment of Officers

The Secretary (and additional Officers, if any) shall be appointed by the Board from time to
time.

Duties of Officers

The Officers shall have such powers and perform such duties in the management, business
and affairs of the Company as may be delegated to them by the Board from time to time.

Compensation of Officers
The Officers shall receive such compensation as the Board may determine.
Conflicts of Interest

46.1 Any Director, or any Director's firm, partner or any company with whom any Director
Is associated, may act in any capacity for, be employed by or render services to the
Company and such Director or such Director's firm, partner or company shall be
entitled to compensation as if such Director were not a Director; provided that this
Avrticle 46.1 shall not apply to Independent Directors.
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47.

46.2

46.3

46.4

46.5

A Director who is directly or indirectly interested in a contract or proposed contract or
arrangement with the Company shall declare the nature of such interest as required by
the Applicable Law. If the Company proposes to enter into any transaction specified
in Article 27.1 or effect other forms of mergers and acquisitions in accordance with
Applicable Law, a director who has a personal interest in such transaction shall
declare the essential contents of such personal interest and the reason why he believes
that the transaction is advisable or not advisable at the relevant meeting of the
Directors and the general meeting as required by the Applicable Law.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Article 46, a Director who
has a personal interest in the matter under discussion at a meeting of the Directors,
which may conflict with and impair the interest of the Company, shall not vote nor
exercise voting rights on behalf of another Director; the voting right of such Director
who cannot vote or exercise any voting right as prescribed above shall not be counted
in the number of votes of Directors present at the board meeting. Where the spouse,
the person related to a Director by blood and within the second degree, or any
company which has a controlling or controlled relation with a Director has interests
in the matters under discussion in the meeting of the Directors, such Director shall
be deemed to have a personal interest in the matter. The terms "controlling” and
"controlled” shall be interpreted in accordance with the Applicable Public
Company Rules.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Article 46, a Director who
is engaged in anything on his own account or on behalf of another person, which is
within the scope of the Company's business, shall explain to the Members in a general
meeting the essential contents of such conduct and seek their approval by
Supermajority Resolution.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Article 46, a Director who
has a personal interest in the matter under discussion at a meeting of the Directors
shall declare the nature of and the essential contents of his interest at the relevant
meeting of the Directors.

Indemnification and Exculpation of Directors and Officers

47.1

The Directors and Officers of the Company and any trustee for the time being acting
in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and every former director, officer or
trustee and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, and personal
representatives (each of which persons being referred to in this Article as an
"indemnified party") shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, or in their respective offices or trusts, and no indemnified party shall
be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of the others of them or for
joining in any receipts for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons
with whom any moneys or effects belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged
or deposited for safe custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon
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47.2

47.3

47.4

which any moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or invested,
or for any other loss, misfortune or damage which may happen in the execution of
their respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto, PROVIDED THAT this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attach to any of the said persons and shall not relieve their duties provided under
Article 47.4.

The Company may purchase and maintain insurance for the benefit of any Director or
Officer of the Company against any liability incurred by him in his capacity as a
Director or Officer of the Company or indemnifying such Director or Officer in
respect of any loss arising or liability attaching to him by virtue of any rule of law in
respect of any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust of which the
Director or Officer may be guilty in relation to the Company or any Subsidiary
thereof.

To the extent permitted under the laws of the Cayman Islands, Members continuously
holding one per cent (1%) or more of the total issued shares of the Company for six
(6) months or longer may:

(@  request in writing the Board to authorise any Independent Director of the Audit
Committee to file a petition with the Taiwan Taipei District Court, ROC for
and on behalf of the Company against any of the Directors; or

(b)  request in writing any Independent Director of the Audit Committee to file a
petition with the Taiwan Taipei District Court, ROC for and on behalf of the
Company against any of the Directors;

within thirty (30) days after the Member(s) having made the request under the
preceding clause (a) or (b), if (i) in the case of clause (a), the Board fails to make such
authorisation or the Independent Director of the Audit Committee having been
authorised by the Board fails to file such petition, or (ii) in the case of clause (b), the
Independent Director of the Audit Committee fails to file such petition, to the extent
permitted under the laws of the Cayman Islands, such Member(s) may file a petition
with the Taiwan Taipei District Court, ROC for and on behalf of the Company against
any of the Directors.

Without prejudice to the duties owed by a Director to the Company under common
law of the Cayman Islands and subject to the Law, a Director shall assume fiduciary
duty to the Company and without limitation, shall exercise due care and skill in
conducting the business operation of the Company. A Director shall be liable to the
Company if he has acted contrary to the above. In case such action is made for
himself or on behalf of another person in violation of the provisions above, the
Company may, with the sanction of an Ordinary Resolution, demand the Director to
disgorge any profit so realized by the Director as if such misconduct is done for the
benefit of the Company. If a Director and/or an officer of the Company has, in the
course of conducting the business operations, violated any provision of the applicable
laws and/or regulations and thus caused damage to any other person, he shall be liable,
jointly and severally with the Company, for the damage to such other person.
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48.

49.

50.

51.

52,

53.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Meetings

Subject to the Applicable Public Company Rules, the Chairman may call a meeting of the
Board and the Board may meet for the transaction of business, adjourn and otherwise
regulate its meetings as it sees fit. The Company shall hold, or cause to be held, regular
meetings of the Board at least on a quarterly basis to review the Company's performance
during the previous fiscal quarter and to decide on matters customarily requiring approval of
the Board as stipulated herein. A resolution put to the vote at a meeting of the Board shall be
carried by the affirmative votes of a majority of the votes cast and in the case of an equality
of votes the resolution shall fail.

Notice of Board Meetings

The Chairman may, and the Secretary on the requisition of the Chairman shall, at any time
summon a meeting of the Board. To convene a meeting of the Board, a notice setting forth
therein the matters to be considered and if appropriate, approved at the meeting shall be
given to each Director no later than seven (7) days prior to the scheduled meeting date.
However, in the case of emergency as agreed by a majority of the Directors, the meeting may
be convened with a shorter notice period in a manner consistent with the Applicable Public
Company Rules. Notice of a meeting of the Board shall be deemed to be duly given to a
Director if, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law, it is given to such Director verbally
(in person or by telephone) or otherwise communicated or sent to such Director by post,
cable, telex, telecopier, facsimile, electronic mail or other mode of representing words in a
legible form at such Director's last known address or any other address given by such
Director to the Company for this purpose.

Participation in Meetings by Video Conference

Directors may participate in any meeting of the Board by means of video conference or other
communication facilities, as permitted by the Applicable Law, where all persons
participating in the meeting to communicate with each other simultaneously and
instantaneously, and participation in such a meeting shall constitute presence in person at
such meeting.

Quorum at Board Meetings

The quorum for a meeting of the Board shall be more than one-half of the total number of
the Directors. Any of the Directors may appoint another Director to represent him at any
meeting of the Board if such Director is unable to do so in person for any cause. If a
Director appoints a proxy then for all purposes the presence or vote of the proxy shall be
deemed to be that of the appointing Director. The appointed Director may only act as the
proxy of one Director only.

Board to Continue in the Event of Vacancy
The Board may act notwithstanding any vacancy in its number.
Chairman to Preside

Unless otherwise agreed by a majority of the Directors attending, the Chairman, if there be
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54,

55.

56.

S57.

one, shall act as chairman at all meetings of the Board at which such person is present. In his
absence a chairman shall be appointed or elected in accordance with the Applicable Public
Company Rules.

Validity of Prior Acts of the Board

No regulation or alteration to these Articles made by the Company in general meeting shall
invalidate any prior act of the Board which would have been valid if that regulation or
alteration had not been made.

CORPORATE RECORDS

Minutes
The Board shall cause minutes to be duly entered in books provided for the purpose:
(@  ofall elections and appointments of Officers;

(b)  of the names of the Directors present at each meeting of the Board and of any
committee appointed by the Board; and

(c)  of all resolutions and proceedings of general meetings of the Members, meetings of
the Board, meetings of managers and meetings of committees appointed by the
Board.

Register of Mortgages and Charges

56.1 The Directors shall cause to be kept the Register of Mortgages and Charges required
by the Law.

56.2 The Register of Mortgages and Charges shall be open to inspection by Members and
creditors in accordance with the Law, at the Registered Office on every business day
in the Cayman Islands, subject to such reasonable restrictions as the Board may
impose, so that not less than two (2) hours in each such business day be allowed for
inspection.

Form and Use of Seal

57.1 The Seal shall only be used by the authority of the Directors or of a committee of the
Directors authorised by the Directors in that behalf; and, until otherwise determined
by the Directors, the Seal shall be affixed in the presence of a Director or the
Secretary or an assistant secretary or some other person authorised for this purpose by
the Directors or the committee of Directors.

57.2 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Seal may without further authority be affixed by
way of authentication to any document required to be filed with the Registrar of
Companies in the Cayman Islands, and may be so affixed by any Director, Secretary
or assistant secretary of the Company or any other person or institution having
authority to file the document as aforesaid.

57.3 The Company may have one or more duplicate Seals, as permitted by the Law; and, if
the Directors think fit, a duplicate Seal may bear on its face of the name of the
country, territory, district or place where it is to be issued.
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58.

59.

60.

TENDER OFFER AND ACCOUNTS

Tender Offer

Within seven (7) days after the receipt of the copy of a tender offer application form and
relevant documents by the Company or its litigious and non-litigious agent appointed by the
Company pursuant to the Applicable Public Company Rules, the Board shall resolve to
recommend to the Members whether to accept or object to the tender offer and make a public
announcement of the following:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

the types and number of the shares held by the Directors and the Members holding
more than ten per cent (10%) of the total issued shares in their own names or in the
names of other persons.

recommendations to the Members on the tender offer, which shall set forth the names
of the Directors who abstain or object to the tender offer and the reason(s) therefor.

whether there is any material change in the financial condition of the Company after
the submission of the latest financial report and an explanation of the change, if any.

the types, numbers and amount of the shares of the tender offeror or its affiliates held
by the Directors and the Members holding more than ten per cent (10%) of the total
number of issued shares held in their own names or in the name of other persons.

Books of Account

59.1

59.2

59.3

The Board shall cause to be kept proper records of account with respect to all
transactions of the Company and in particular with respect to:-

(@  all sums of money received and expended by the Company and the matters in
respect of which the receipt and expenditure relates;

(b)  all sales and purchases of goods by the Company; and
(c)  all assets and liabilities of the Company.

Such books of account shall be kept for at least five (5) years from the date they are
prepared.

Such records of account shall be kept and proper books of account shall not be
deemed to be kept with respect to the matters aforesaid if there are not kept, at such
place as the Board thinks fit, such books as are necessary to give a true and fair view
of the state of the Company's affairs and to explain its transactions.

The instruments of proxy, documents, forms/statements and information in electronic
media prepared in accordance with the Articles and relevant rules and regulations
shall be kept for at least one (1) year. However, if a Member institutes a lawsuit with
respect to such instruments of proxy, documents, forms/statements and/or information
mentioned herein, they shall be kept until the conclusion of the litigation if longer
than one (1) year.

Financial Year End

The financial year end of the Company shall be 31st December in each year but, subject to
any direction of the Company in general meeting, the Board may from time to time prescribe
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61.

62.

some other period to be the financial year, provided that the Board may not without the
sanction of an Ordinary Resolution prescribe or allow any financial year longer than
eighteen months.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Number of Committee Members

The Board shall set up an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall comprise solely of
Independent Directors and the number of committee members shall not be less than three (3).
One of the Audit Committee members shall be appointed as the convener to convene
meetings of the Audit Committee from time to time and at least one of the Audit Committee
members shall have accounting or financial expertise. A valid resolution of the Audit
Committee requires approval of one-half or more of all its members.

Powers of Audit Committee

62.1 The Audit Committee shall have the responsibilities and powers as specified under
the Applicable Public Company Rules. Any of the following matters of the Company
shall require the consent of one-half or more of all Audit Committee members and be
submitted to the Board for resolution:

(@) adoption of or amendment to an internal control system;
(b) assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system;

(c) adoption of or amendment to the handling procedures for financial or
operational actions of material significance, such as acquisition or disposal of
assets, derivatives trading, extension of monetary loans to others, or
endorsements or guarantees for others;

(d) any matter relating to the personal interest of the Directors;

(e) amaterial asset or derivatives transaction;

(H amaterial monetary loan, endorsement, or provision of guarantee;

(g) the offering, issuance, or Private Placement of any equity-related securities;

(h) the hiring or dismissal of an attesting certified public accountant, or the
compensation given thereto;

(1) the appointment or discharge of a financial, accounting, or internal auditing
officer;

(1) approval of annual and semi-annual financial reports; and

(k) any other matter so determined by the Company from time to time or required
by any competent authority overseeing the Company.

With the exception of item (j), any other matter that has not been approved with the
consent of one-half or more of all Audit Committee members may be undertaken
upon the consent of two-thirds or more of the members of the Board, and the
resolution of the Audit Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of the Directors
meeting.
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63.

64.

65.

62.2

Subject to compliance with the Law, before the meeting of Directors resolves any
matter specified in Article 27.1 or other mergers and acquisitions in accordance with
the Applicable Law, the Audit Committee shall review the fairness and
reasonableness of the relevant merger and acquisition plan and transaction, and
report its review results to the meeting of Directors and the general meeting;
provided, however, that such review results need not be submitted to the general
meeting if the approval from the Members is not required under the Applicable Law.
When the Audit Committee conducts the review, it shall engage an independent
expert to issue an opinion on the fairness of the share exchange ratio, cash
consideration or other assets to be offered to the Members. The review results of
the Audit Committee and the fairness opinion issued by the independent expert shall
be distributed to the Members, along with the notice of the general meeting; provided,
however, that the Company can only report matters relating to such merger and
acquisition at the next following general meeting if the approval from the Members
is not required under the Applicable Law. Such review results and fairness opinion
shall be deemed to have been distributed to the Members if the same have been
uploaded onto the website designated by the FSC and made available to the Members
for their inspection and review at the venue of the general meeting.

VOLUNTARY WINDING-UP AND DISSOLUTION

Winding-Up

63.1
63.2

The Company may be voluntarily wound-up in accordance with Article 11.5.

If the Company shall be wound up the liquidator may, with the sanction of a Special
Resolution, divide amongst the Members in specie or in kind the whole or any part of
the assets of the Company (whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or
not) and may, for such purpose, set such value as he deems fair upon any property to
be divided as aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be carried out as
between the Members or different classes of Members. The liquidator may, with the
like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in the trustees upon such trusts
for the benefit of the Members as the liquidator shall think fit, but so that no Member
shall be compelled to accept any shares or other securities or assets whereon there is
any liability.

CHANGES TO CONSTITUTION

Changes to Articles

Subject to the Law and to the conditions contained in its Memorandum, the Company may,
by Special Resolution, alter or add to its Articles.

REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Reduction of Share Capital

The Company may by Special Resolution reduce its share capital and any capital redemption
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66.

67.

reserve in any manner authorised by the Law and the Applicable Public Company Rules.
Any such reduction of share capital shall be effected based on the percentage of shareholding
of the Members pro rata, unless otherwise provided for in the Law or the Applicable Public
Company Rules.

Discontinuance

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to transfer by way of continuation
the Company to a named country or jurisdiction outside the Cayman Islands pursuant to the
Law.

OTHER

Social Responsibilities

When the Company conducts the business, the Company shall comply with the laws and
regulations as well as business ethics and may take actions which will promote public
interests in order to fulfill its social responsibilities.
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Appendix 4

ZHEN DING TECHNOLOGY HOLDING LIMITED
Third Issuance of Foreign Non-guaranteed Convertible Corporate Bonds and Conversion Method

THIS DOCUMENT MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR TAKEN OR TRANSMITTED INTO THE UNITED STATES, CANADA, KOREA, CHINA OR JAPAN OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTIONS IN WHICH SUCH DISTRIBUTION WOULD BE PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW.

THIS INDICATIVE TERM SHEET COMPRISES ONLY A SUMMARY OF THE TERMS OF THE PROPOSED CONVERTIBLE BONDS {THE “BONDS”) AND IS NOT AN OFFERING MEMORANDUM OR PROSPECTUS. THE INFORMATION HEREIN IS INDICATIBE ONLY.
THERE IS NO ASSURANCE THAT THE BONDS WILL ACTUALLY BE ISSUED. THE BONDS WILL BE ISSUED ON THE BASIS OF THE "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS" IN OFFERING MEMORANDOM AND THE INDENTURE TO BE ENTERED INTO BY THE PARTIES
IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING. BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT DECISION AND ENTERING INTO ANY TRANSACTION IN RELATION TO THE BONDS, YOU SHOULD TAKE STEPS TO ENSURE THAT YOU UNDERSTAND THE TRANSACTION ANC
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CREDIT SUISSE citi

B ERIA

Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited (4958 TT)
US$400 million USD Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds due 2025 (“Bonds”)

The Convertible Bonds and the Common Shares of Zhen Ding Technology ¥ 5% into which the Bonds are convertible have not been and will not be registered
under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”).

Summary Indicative Terms and Conditions
Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited %5 BHE = AL T PR A F (“Zhen Ding”, the “Company” or the “Issuer”)
USD Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds due 2025 (the “Bonds”) convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares (“Common

Shares”), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (“TWSE”) under the stock code “4958”. The Bonds are offered
and sold in reliance on Regulation S (Category 1) under the Securities Act. under the Securities Act

Supplement working capital and repay loans

Issuer

Offering

Use of Proceeds

Joint Global Coordinators and Joint
Bookrunners

Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Ranking

Principal Amount
Currency

Final Issue Size
Maturity Date
Holder’s Put Option Date
Issue Price

Coupon

Yield to Put/Maturity
Holder’s Put Price

Final Redemption Price
Conversion Premium
Reference Share Price
Fixed Exchange Rate
Initial Conversion Price

Initial Conversion Ratio

Conversion Right

Conversion Period

Redemption at the Option of the
Company

Direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer
US$200,000 in principal amount or any higher integral multiple of US$100,000
usD

USS 400mn

June 30, 2025

June 30, 2023

100% of the Principal Amount

Zero

Zero

100.00% of the Principal Amount

100.00% of the Principal Amount

17.5% over the Reference Share Price

NT$134.00, as of closing of June 22, 2020

NT$29.5930/ US$1.00 (Taipei Forex Inc. Taiwan Dollar 11:00 Fixing on June 22, 2020, “TRY11 Index” on Bloomberg)
NT$157.45, based on Reference Share Price

37,590.3461 Shares per US$200,000 principal amount of the Bond at the Initial Conversion Price, based on the Fixed
Exchange Rate

Subject to certain conditions, each holder of the Bonds will have the right during the Conversion Period to convert its
Bonds (or any portion thereof being US$200,000 in principal amount or any higher integral multiple of US$100,000) into
Common Shares of the Issuer. The number of Common Shares to be issued upon conversion will be determined by dividing
the aggregate principal amount of all the Bonds to be converted by such Holder (translated into NT Dollars at the Fixed
Exchange Rate)

The period commencing November 30, 2020 and ending at the close of business June 20, 2025 or, if the Bonds are
called for redemption prior to the Maturity Date, on the date five Trading Days prior to the redemption date. The
Conversion Period shall not include any Closed Period, as defined in the Terms and Conditions

" Jssuer Call - Callable at any time on or after June 30, 2023, in whole or in part, at the Early Redemption Amount, if
the closing price of the Common Shares on the TWSE for each of the 20 consecutive trading days, the last of which
occurs not more than five days prior to the redemption notice date, is at least 125% of the Conversion Price
multiplied by the Early Redemption Amount and divided by US$100,000

" Clean up Call - Callable at any time, in whole but not in part, at the Early Redemption Amount if more than 90% in
principal amount of the Bonds originally outstanding has been redeemed, repurchased and canceled or converted

. Tax Call - The Issuer may redeem the Bonds, in whole but not in part, at the Early Redemption Amount in the event
of changes relating to the tax laws in the Cayman Islands, the ROC or such other jurisdiction in which the Issuer is
then organized or resident for tax purposes, the Issuer becomes obligated to pay additional amounts on the
Bonds. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds at the time when the
redemption notice is given is greater than 10% of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds as of the Closing
Date, Bondholders may elect not to have their Bonds redeemed but with no entitlement to any additional
amounts or reimbursement of additional tax
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Summary Indicative ms and Conditions

Repurchase of the Bonds at the " Holder Put Option - Yes, at the Holder’s Put Price on the Holder’s Put Option Date

Option of Holders
P " Delisting Put: Each Holder shall have the right to require the Issuer to repurchase all (or any portion of the principal

amount thereof which is US$200,000 or any higher integral multiple of US$100,000) of such Holder’s Bond at the
Early Redemption Amount if the Common Shares cease to be listed or admitted to trading on the TWSE

®  Change of Control Put: Each Holder shall have the right to require the Issuer to repurchase all (or any portion of the
principal amount thereof which is US$200,000 or any higher integral multiple of US$100,000) such Holder’s Bonds at
the Early Redemption Amount if a Change of Control occurs

Change of Control Events ®  Anyperson or persons acting together acquires control of the Issuer if such person or persons does not or do not

have, and would not be deemed to have, control of the Issuer on the Closing Date; or

®  Thelssuer consolidates with or merges into or sells or transfers all or substantially all of the Issuer’s assets to any other
person, unless the consolidation, merger, sale or transfer will not result in the other person or persons acquiring
control over the Issuer or the successor entity

Early Redemption Amount ®  For each US$100,000 principal amount of Bonds, the amount which represents a gross yield of 0.0% per
annum, calculated on a semi-annual basis up to the redemption date

Dividend Protection ®  Conversion price adjustment in respect of alldividends

Anti-dilution Protection []

Standard provisions protecting against, inter alia, dividend or distribution of Common Shares, subdivision,
consolidation and re-classification of Shares, issuance of rights, warrants, distribution of shares of capital stock other
than Common Shares, the issue of convertible or exchangeable bonds, and certain other dilutive events

®  No conversion price adjustment solely by reason of the issuance of Common Shares as contemplated by a share
swap agreement dated March 10, 2020 entered into by and between BoardTek and the Issuer

Negative Pledge ®  Standard negative pledge applicable to the Company and its Principal Subsidiaries on any International Investment
Securities

Events of Default ®  Standard Euro-market events of default, applicable to the Issuer and its Principal Subsidiaries, including a cross default
of US$35 million or more

Principal Subsidiary Any Subsidiary of the Company:

®  whose net sales constitute at least 10% of the consolidated net sales of the Company and its consolidated
Subsidiaries; or

®  whosegross assets constitute at least 10% of the gross assets of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries

International Investment Securities Bonds, debentures, notes or other similar investment securities of the Issuer or any other person evidencing indebtedness
with a maturity of not less than one year from the issue date thereof, or any guarantees thereof, which

® (i) either (A) are by their terms payable, or confer a right to receive payment, in any currency other than NT Dollars
or (B) are denominated in NT Dollars and more than 50% of the aggregate principal amount thereof is initially
distributed outside the ROC by or with the consent of the Issuer and
(i) are for the time being, or are intended to be, quoted, listed, ordinarily dealt in or traded, in each case primarily, on a stock
exchange or over-the-counter or other securities market outside the ROC
Day Count Convention 30/ 360

Lock-up For a period beginning on the date of the purchase agreement and ending S0 days after the Closing Date, the Issuer will
not, without the Joint Bookrunners’ prior written consent, lend, offer, sell, contract to sell, grant any option to purchase,
pledge or otherwise dispose of any other Shares or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for the Common
Shares (other than the sale of the Bonds and the issuance of their Common Shares (i) upon conversion of the Bonds, (ii)
to implement stock splits and employee stock option plans, (iii) upon the conversion of existing securities or the exercise
of existing warrants or (iv) pursuant to a share swap agreement dated March 10, 2020 entered into by and between
BoardTek and the Issuer

Governing Law New York Law

Trustee, Paying and Conversion Citicorp International Limited as Trustee

Agent Citibank N.A. London Branch as Paying Agent and Conversion Agent

Listing Application will be made for the listing and quotation of the Bonds on the Official List of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (SGX- ST) and for the listing of the Common Shares issuable on conversion of the Bonds on
the TWSE

Settlement Euroclear and Clearstream

Form Registered only

Pricing / Trade Date June 22, 2020

Closing / Settlement Date June 30, 2020

Selling Restrictions Sales under Regulation S only (Category 1)

Security Codes ISIN: XS2195093674; Common code: 219509367
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INVESTOR REPRESENTATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Upon receipt of this document, and by applying for an allocation of the Bonds, you represent and acknowledge your agreement that:

. This document is being furnished to you solely for your information and may not be reproduced, redistributed or made available in whole or in part to any other person for any
purpose;

. You understand that a preliminary offering memorandum (the “Preliminary Offering Memorandum”) has been prepared in connection with the Bonds at the time of the offering
and the Preliminary Offering Memorandum is not yet final and is subject to updating, further negotiation, amendment, verification and completion;

. You acknowledge that (i) the Shares are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and the Issuer is therefore required to publish certain business and financial information in
accordance with the rules and practices of such exchange (the “Exchange Information™), which includes, among other things, a description of the Issuer's and its subsidiaries'
(the “Group") principal operations and activities, balance sheets, income statements and cash flow statements and other information relating to the Issuer and the Group
which is necessary to enable the holders of the Shares and the public to appraise the position of the Issuer and the Group; and (ji) that you are able to obtain or access the
Exchange Information without undue difficulty;

. You will not hold Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited and Citi Citigroup Global Markets Limited or any of their branches, subsidiaries, associates and affiliates (together, the
“Bookrunners”) and their respective directors, members, officers, employees, agents, financiers, advisers (including, without limitation, financial advisers, counsel and
accountants) and controlling persons (together, the “Representatives"), responsible for any misstatements in or omission from any publicly available information concerning
the Issuer, including any Exchange Information, or any public announcement made by the Issuer to its stockholders; and you may not rely, and agree that you have not relied
on any investigation or due diligence that the Bookrunners, or any of their Representatives or any person acting on the behalf of the Bookrunners and their Representatives,
may have conducted with respect to the Bonds, the Shares or the business and properties of the Issuer, and none of such persons has made any warranty, representation or
recommendation to you, express or implied, with respect to the Bonds, the merits thereof or the purchase or offer thereof, the business, properties and condition, financial or
otherwise, of the Issuer; the accuracy, completeness or adequacy of any publicly available information and any other matter relating thereto or in connection therewith.
Nothing herein shall be construed as a recommendation to you to purchase the Bonds;

. You have not relied on any statement, opinion or representation made by the Bookrunners or any of their Representatives, or any statement made on behalf of the
Bookrunners or any of its Representatives, to induce you to purchase the Bonds, and you will continue to make your own appraisal of the transactions described herein and
other matters related thereto;

. You have: (i) consulted your own legal, regulatory, tax, business, investment, financial and accounting advisers in connection herewith to the extent you have deemed
necessary; and (ii) made your own investment decision based upon your own judgment, due diligence, resources and investigation and advice from such advisers as you
have deemed necessary and not upon any view expressed by or on behalf of the Bookrunners or any of their Representatives;

. You have such knowledge and experience in financial, business and international investment matters such that you are capable of evaluating the merits and risks of investing
in the Bonds;

. You understand that entering into the offering involves a high degree of risk and that the Bonds are a speculative investment;

. You understand that (a) completion of the offering is subject to the satisfaction and/or waiver of customary conditions precedents and (b) the Bookrunners may exercise their
discretion not to close the transaction for reasons set forth in the subscription agreement and you will not hold the Bookrunners liable for any damages as a result of the
exercise of such right or discretion;

. Your receipt of an allocation of the Bonds from the Bookrunners will constitute an irrevocable agreement to subscribe for the allocated amount of Bonds on the expected
Closing / Settlement Date of this offering and shall constitute a legally binding contract between you and the Bookrunners;

. You are not a U.S. person (as defined in Regulation S)and you are purchasing the Bonds outside the United States in an "offshore transaction" as defined in Regulation S

. Neither the Bonds nor the Shares issuable upon conversion of the Bonds have been or will be registered under the Securities Act or any applicable U.S. state securities laws
and, you agree not to offer, sell, pledge or otherwise transfer the Bonds or the Shares issuable upon the conversion of the Bonds except (a) in “offshore transactions” outside
the United States in reliance on Regulation S; (b) pursuant to another applicable exemption from registration under the Securities Act (if available); or (c) pursuant to an
effective registration statement under the Securities Act, in each case, in accordance with all applicable U.S. state securities laws;

. You are not (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended) ("MIFID II"); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive
2002/92/EC, where you would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II;

. You are purchasing the Bonds for your own account and not with a view to distribution thereof, and you are, or at the time of your purchase will be, the beneficial owner of the
Bonds purchased and (a) outside the United States; and (b) not an affiliate of the Issuer or a person acting on behalf of such an affiliate;

. Your purchase of the Bonds is lawful under the securities laws of the jurisdiction in which you accept the offer to purchase the Bonds and it is lawful for you to receive this
document and participate in the offering under the laws thereof; and

. You acknowledge that the Bookrunners, their Representatives and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of your representations and acknowledgments set forth herein,
and you agree to notify the Bookrunners promptly in writing if, at any time before the expected Closing / Settlement Date of this offering, any of your representations or
acknowledgments herein ceases to be accurate and complete;

. You will comply with all relevant selling restrictions in the “Important Information” section below as well as those selling restrictions which will be set forth in the Preliminary
Offering Memorandum;

. You are not a ROC person or located in the ROC, and you are not purchasing the Bonds for the account or benefit of any ROC person;

. You and your ultimate beneficial holders are not and will not become at closing / settlement a “related party” of the Issuer as defined in applicable Taiwanese laws and
regulations and the source of funds that will be used to purchase the Bonds did not originate from a “related party”. Therefore, you acknowledge and represent to the Issuer
and the Bookrunners that you and your ultimate beneficial holders are not: (a) a business entity that is invested by the Issuer using equity method in our accounting reporting,
(b) @ business entity that invests in the Issuer and uses equity method in its accounting reporting; (c) @a company whose chairperson of the board or president is the same as
that of the Issuer or is the spouse thereof, (d) a foundation with one-third of its total paid-in funds donated by the Issuer, (e) the Issuer's director, president, vice-president,
assistant vice president, and other department head under the immediate supervision by the Issuer's president, (f) a spouse of the Issuer's director or president, (g) a director
or employee of any member of the underwriting syndicate or a spouse thereto, and (h) a person subscribing for the Bonds on behalf of or for the benefit of any person set
forth in items (a) to (g) above. For the purposes of the above item (h), @ person shall be deemed to subscribe for the Bonds on behalf of or for the benefit of a “related person”
if: (i) the purchase price for the Bonds is directly or indirectly funded by such related person; (i) the related person is entitled to manage, employ or dispose of the Bonds held
under the name of such person; or (iii) the related person shares all or part of the gains, interests or losses on the Bonds held under the name of such person; and

. You are not a Singapore person or located in Singapore, unless you are purchasing the Bonds (i) as an institutional investor (as defined in Section 4A of the Securities and
Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the “SFA”)) pursuant to Section 274 of the SFA, (i) as a relevant person (as defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA) pursuant to
Section 275(1) of the SFA, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A) of the SFA, and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275 of the SFA; or (iii) otherwise
pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

DISCLAIMER
NO SALE IS PERMITTED INTO THE UNITED STATES, CANADA, THE REPUBLIC OF CHINA OR THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT AN OFFERING
MEMORANDUM AND SHOULD NOT BE TREATED AS OFFERING MATERIAL OF ANY SORT. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION, IS SOLELY FOR YOUR INFORMATION
PURPOSES AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED, REDISTRIBUTED OR PASSED ON DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY TO ANY OTHER PERSON OR PUBLISHED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR ANY
OTHER PURPOSE.

THIS DOCUMENT IS DIRECTED EXCLUSIVELY AT MARKET PROFESSIONALS AND INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS, THIS DOCUMENT IS FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT
TO BE RELIED UPON IN SUBSTITUTION FOR THE EXERCISE OF INDEPENDENT JUDGEMENT. IT IS NOT INTENDED TO FORM THE BASIS OF ANY INVESTMENT DECISION OR AS
INVESTMENT ADVICE AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS IT TO BE USED OR CONSIDERED AS AN OFFER TO SELL, OR A SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY SECURITY OR A
RECOMMENDATION TO BUY OR SELL ANY SECURITY NOR SHALL IT CONSTITUTE THE BASIS OF ANY CONTRACT WHICH MAY BE CONCLUDED.

ANY INVESTMENT DECISION MUST BE MADE ON THE BASIS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE PRELIMINARY OFFERING MEMORANDUM AND PUBLICLY AVAILABLE
INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUER, THE BONDS AND THE SHARES AND NOT ON THE BASIS OF THIS TERM SHEET OR ANY OTHER MATERIALS ISSUED OR DISTRIBUTED BY THE
BOOKRUNNERS WHETHER OR NOT IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING

NEITHER THE BOOKRUNNERS NOR ANY OF THEIR SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES, NOR ANY OF THEIR REPRESENTATIVES, MAKES ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, NOR SHALL ANY OF THEM HAVE ANY RESPONSBILITY OR LIABILITIES WHATSOEVER IN RESPECT OF THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THIS DOCUMENT. THE
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE. IN ADDITION, NO SUCH PARTY IS UNDER ANY OBLIGATION TO UPDATE THIS DOCUMENT
OR CORRECT ANY INACCURACIES IN OR OMISSIONS FROM IT WHICH MAY EXIST OR BECOME APPARENT.

NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY IS ACCEPTED, AND ANY AND ALL RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY IS EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED, BY THE BOOKRUNNERS, THEIR SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATES, AND ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES FOR ANY ERRORS, MIS-STATEMENTS OR MISREPRESENTATIONS IN, OR OMISSIONS FROM, THIS DOCUMENT.
EACH RECIPIENT SHOULD CONSULT HIS/HER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER TO ASCERTAIN THE SUITABILITY OF THE BONDS AS AN INVESTMENT. FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT,
NEITHER THE ISSUER NOR THE BOOKRUNNERS MAKES ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY THAT THEY INTEND TO ACCEPT OR BE BOUND TO ANY OF THE TERMS HEREIN NOR
SHALL THE ISSUER OR THE BOOKRUNNERS BE OBLIGED TO ENTER INTO ANY FURTHER DISCUSSIONS OR NEGOTIATIONS PURSUANT THERETO BUT SHALL BE ENTITLED IN THEIR
ABSOLUTE DISCRETION TO ACT IN ANY WAY THAT THEY SEE FIT IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED TRANSACTION. ANY DISCUSSIONS, NEGOTIATIONS OR OTHER
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OR SELLING THE BONDS OR OTHERWISE MAKING THEM AVAILABLE TO ANY RETAIL INVESTOR IN THE EEA MAY BE UNLAWFUL UNDER THE PRIIPS REGULATION.

NOTICE OF PRODUCT CLASSIFICATION UNDER SECTION 309B(1){C} OF THE SFA: THE BONDS ARE "PRESCRIBED CAPITAL MARKETS PRODUCTS" AS SPECIFIED IN THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES CAPITAL MARKETS PRODUCTS REGULATIONS 2018 OF
SINGAPORE

COMMUNICATIONS THAT MAY BE ENTERED INTO, WHETHER IN CONNECTION WITH THE TERMS SET OUT HEREIN OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE CONDUCTED SUBJECT TO CONTRACT.
EACH RECIPIENT MUST RELY ONLY ON THE REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND UNDERTAKINGS, IF ANY, CONTAINED IN THE CONTRACT AND SUBJECT TO SUCH LIMITATIONS
AND EXCLUSIONS AS MAY BE SPECIFIED THEREIN. THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE DISCLAIMER AND QUALIFICATIONS SPECIFIED ABOVE AND EACH RECIPIENT SHOULD MAKE
ITS OWN INVESTMENT DECISION AND SHOULD NOT ACT ON THE BASIS OF ANY MATTER SPECIFIED, DISCUSSED OR REFERRED TO IN THIS DOCUMENT.

EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD PROCEED ON THE ASSUMPTION THAT IT MUST BEAR THE ECONOMIC RISK OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES FOR AN INDEFINITE
PERIOD. NEITHER THE ISSUER NOR BOOKRUNNERS NOR ANY OF THEIR SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES, NOR ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES MAKES ANY
REPRESENTATION AS TO (I) THE SUITABILITY OF THE BONDS FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR, (Il) THE APPROPRIATE ACCOUNTING TREATMENT AND POTENTIAL TAX
CONSEQUENCES OF INVESTING IN THE BONDS OR (lIl) THE FUTURE PERFORMANCE OF THE BONDS EITHER IN ABSOLUTE TERMS OR RELATIVE TO COMPETING INVESTMENTS.

THE BOOKRUNNERS AND/OR THEIR SUBSIDIARIES AND/OR AFFILIATES OR THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES MAY, FOR THEIR OWN ACCOUNT, ENTER INTO ASSET SWAPS,
CREDIT DERIVATIVES OR OTHER DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS RELATING TO THE BONDS AND/OR THE UNDERLYING SHARES AT THE SAME TIME AS THE OFFER AND SALE OF THE
BONDS OR IN SECONDARY MARKET TRANSACTIONS. THE BOOKRUNNERS AND/OR ANY OF THEIR SUBSIDIARIES AND/OR AFFILIATES OR THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES
MAY FROM TIME TO TIME HOLD LONG OR SHORT POSITIONS IN OR BUY AND SELL SUCH BONDS OR DERIVATIVES OR THE UNDERLYING SHARES. NO DISCLOSURE WILL BE MADE OF
ANY SUCH POSITIONS. THE BOOKRUNNERS AND/OR THEIR SUBSIDIARIES AND/OR AFFILIATES MAY PURCHASE BONDS FOR PROPRIETARY INVESTMENT PURPOSES.

THIS DOCUMENT HAS BEEN MADE AVAILABLE TO YOU IN ELECTRONIC FORM. YOU ARE REMINDED THAT DOCUMENTS TRANSMITTED VIA THIS MEDIUM MAY BE ALTERED OR
CHANGED DURING THE PROCESS OF TRANSMISSION AND CONSEQUENTLY NEITHER THE BOOKRUNNERS NOR ANY OF THEIR SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES, NOR ANY OF THEIR
RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES ACCEPTS ANY LIABILITY OR RESPONSIBILITY WHATSOEVER IN RESPECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE ELECTRONIC FORMAT AND THE
HARD COPY VERSION.

RISK FACTORS: AN INVESTMENT IN THE BONDS IS SUBJECT TO RISKS, INCLUDING REPAYMENT RISK. THE RISK FACTORS ARE DESCRIBED IN THE PRELIMINARY OFFERING
MEMORANDUM.

THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OR SOLICITATION IN ANY JURISDICTION IN WHICH SUCH OFFER OR SOLICITATION IS NOT PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE LAW
OR TO ANY PERSON OR ENTITY THAT DOES NOT POSSESS THE QUALIFICATIONS DESCRIBED HEREIN.

THE BONDS AND THE SHARES ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE SECURITIES
LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES, OR WITH A SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE
OFFERED, SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED OR DELIVERED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES EXCEPT (A) IN AN “OF FSHORE TRANSACTION" OUTSIDE THE UNITED
STATES IN RELIANCE ON REGULATION S; (B) PURSUANT TO EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT; OR (C) PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, IN EACH CASE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS .NO PUBLIC OFFERING OF THE SECURITIES WILL
BE MADE IN THE UNITED STATES OR IN ANY OTHER JURISDICTION WHERE SUCH AN OFFERING IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED.

THIS DOCUMENT HAS NOT BEEN, AND WILL NOT BE, REGISTERED AS A PROSPECTUS WITH THE MONETARY AUTHORITY OF SINGAPORE, AND THE BONDS WILL BE OFFERED
PURSUANT TO EXEMPTIONS UNDER THE SFA. ACCORDINGLY, THIS DOCUMENT OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT OR MATERIAL IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OR SALE, OR
INVITATION FOR SUBSCRIPTION OR PURCHASE, OF THE BONDS MAY NOT BE CIRCULATED OR DISTRIBUTED, NOR MAY THE BONDS BE OFFERED OR SOLD, OR BE MADE THE
SUBJECT OF AN INVITATION FOR SUBSCRIPTION OR PURCHASE, WHETHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, TO ANY PERSON IN SINGAPORE OTHER THAN () TO AN INSTITUTIONAL
INVESTOR (AS DEFINED IN SECTION 4A OF THE SFA) PURSUANT TO SECTION 274 OF THE SFA; (Il) TO A RELEVANT PERSON (AS DEFINED IN SECTION 275(2) OF THE SFA) PURSUANT
TO SECTION 275(1) OF THE SFA, OR ANY PERSON PURSUANT TO SECTION 275(1A) OF THE SFA, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN SECTION 275 OF THE
SFA; OR (lIl) OTHERWISE PURSUANT TO, AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF, ANY OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISION OF THE SFA.

DISTRIBUTION OF THIS DOCUMENT IN OR FROM CERTAIN JURISDICTIONS MAY BE RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED BY LAW. RECIPIENTS ARE REQUIRED BY THE BOOKRUNNERS TO
INFORM THEMSELVES OF AND COMPLY WITH ALL RESTRICTIONS OR PROBIHITIONS IN SUCH JURISDICTIONS. NEITHER THE BOOKRUNNERS NOR THEIR SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATES, NOR ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES, ACCEPTS ANY LIABILITY TO ANY PERSON IN RELATION TO THE DISTRIBUTION OR POSSESSION OF THIS
DOCUMENT IN OR FROM ANY JURISDICTION. THIS DOCUMENT IS PROVIDED TO RECIPIENTS ON A PERSONAL BASIS AND THE RIGHT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PROPOSED
TRANSACTION IS PERSONAL TO THE RECIPIENT AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.

BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, THE RECIPIENT AGREES NOT TO DISTRIBUTE THIS DOCUMENT TO OTHERS, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, AT ANY TIME WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT OF THE ISSUER OR THE BOOKRUNNERS AND TO KEEP CONFIDENTIAL ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.CONTENTS OF THIS DOCUMENT AND ANY OTHER
INFORMATION OR OPINIONS SUBSEQUENTLY SUPPLIED MAY NOT, WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE ISSUER AND/OR THE BOOKRUNNERSS BE PUBLISHED, REPRODUCED,
COPIED OR DISCLOSED TO ANY PERSON. THIS DOCUMENT IS BEING DELIVERED FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY AND UPON THE EXPRESS UNDERSTANDING THAT IT WILL BE
USED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE SET FORTH ABOVE. UPON REQUEST, THE RECIPIENT WILL RETURN PROMPTLY ALL MATERIALS RECEIVED FROM THE BOOKRUNNERS AND THE
ISSUER (INCLUDING THIS DOCUMENT) WITHOUT RETAINING ANY COPIES THEREOF. THE RECIPIENT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY LOSS SUFFERED BY THE ISSUER, THE
BOOKRUNNERS AND ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES, AND ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE REPRESENTATIVES IN THE EVENT OF ANY UNAUTHORISED
DISCLOSURE.

NEITHER THE ISSUE OF THIS DOCUMENT NOR ANY PART OF ITS CONTENTS IS TO BE TAKEN AS ANY FORM OF COMMITMENT ON THE PART OF THE BOOKRUNNERS OR THE ISSUER
TO PROCEED WITH THE PROPOSED TRANSACTION WHICH MAY BE ENVISAGED BY THE ISSUE OF THIS DOCUMENT.

THE BOOKRUNNERS AND THE ISSUER RESERVE THE RIGHT TO AMEND THE TERMS CONTAINED HEREIN WITHOUT GIVING PRIOR NOTICE THERETO, TO TERMINATE THE PROPOSED
TRANSACTION AND TO TERMINATE ANY DISCUSSIONS AND NEGOTIATIONS WITH ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS AT ANY TIME, FOR ANY REASON AND WITHOUT GIVING ANY
REASONS.

BY ACCEPTING THIS DOCUMENT, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE FOREGOING LIMITATIONS.
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